



Liviel Danashment

RECEIVED-DOCKETING DIV
2009 DEC -9 PM 4:08
PUCO

American Electric Power 1 Riverside Plaza Columbus, OH 43215-2373 AFP cam

December 9, 2009

Ms. Renee J. Jenkins Secretary of the Commission Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 180 East Broad Street Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793

Marvin I. Resnik
Assistant General Counsel Regulatory Services
(614) 716-1606
(614) 716-2950 (fax)
miresnik@aep.com

Re:

PUCO Case Nos. 89-6003-EL-TRF; 89-6007-EL-TRF; 09-1003-EL-ATA

Dear Ms. Jenkins:

Enclosed are four copies of Columbus Southern Power Company's and Ohio Power Company's compliance tariffs, which are being filed in accordance with the Commission Finding and Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA.

One copy of Columbus Southern Power Company's tariff filing should be filed in Case No. 89-6003-EL-TRF and one copy of Ohio Power Company's tariff filing should be filed in Case No. 89-6007-EL-TRF. One copy of each Company's tariff filing should be placed in Case No. 09-1003-El-ATA. Two copies of each Company's tariff filing have been designated for distribution to the Rates and Tariffs, Energy and Water Division of the Commission's Utilities Department.

The Companies will update their tariffs previously filed electronically with the Commission's Docketing Division.

Very truly yours,

Marvin I. Resnik

MIR/adc Enclosures

This is to certify that the images appearing are an accurate and complete reproduction of a case file document delivered in the regular course of business rechnician D.A. Date Processed 12/10 67

COLUMBUS SOUTHERN POWER COMPANY COMPLIANCE TARIFF

STANDARD SERVICE

Filed pursuant to Order in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Schedule		Sheet No(s)	Effective Date
	Table of Contents	1-1 thru 1-2	December 9, 2009
	List of Communities Served	2-1 thru 2-2	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Terms and Conditions of Service	3-1 thru 3-15	December 9, 2009
	Miscellaneous Distribution Charges	5-1 thru 5-2	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Minimum Requirements for Distribution System Interconnection	6-1 thru 6-5	Cycle 1 April 2009
R-R	Residential Service	10-1 thru 10-4	Cycle 1 August 2009
R-R-1	Residential Small Use Load Management	11-1 thru 11-4	Cycle 1 August 2009
RLM	Residential Optional Demand Rate	12-1 thru 12-4	Cycle 1 August 2009
RS-ES	Residential Energy Storage	13-1 thru 13-3	Cycle 1 August 2009
RS-TOD	Residential Time-of-Day	14-1 thru 14-2	Cycle 1 August 2009
GS-1	General Service – Small	20-1 thru 20-4	Cycle 1 August 2009
GS-2	General Service – Low Load Factor	21-1 thru 21-5	Cycle 1 August 2009
GS-2-TOD	General Service Time-of-Day	22-1 thru 22-2	Cycle 1 August 2009
GS-3	General Service – Medium Load Factor	23-1 thru 23-5	Cycle 1 August 2009
GS-4	General Service – Large	24-1 thru 24-3	Cycle 1 August 2009
IRP-D	Interruptible Power - Discretionary	25-1 thru 25-11	Cycle 1 August 2009
COGEN/SPP	Cogeneration and/or Small Power Production	26-1 thru 26-4	Cycle 1 April 2009
SBS	Standby Service	27-1 thru 27-9	Cycle 1 August 2009
NEMS	Net Energy Metering Service	28-1 thru 28-2	Cycle 1 April 2009
SL	Street Lighting	40-1 thru 40-4	Cycle 1 August 2009
AL	Private Area Lighting	41-1 thru 41-4	Cycle 1 August 2009

(Continued on Sheet No. 1-2)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PA	Pole Attachment	43-1 thru 43-2	Cycle 1 April 2009
Supp. No. 18	Church and School Service	52-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
Supp. No. 21	Public Authority – Delayed Payment	53-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Universal Service Fund Rider	60-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Advanced Energy Fund Rider	61-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	KWH Tax Rider	62-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Provider of Last Resort Charge Rider	69-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Electronic Transfer Rider	70-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
_	Emergency Curtailable Service Rider	71-1 thru 71-3	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Energy Price Curtailable Service Rider	72-1 thru 72-4	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Monongahela Power Litigation Termination Rider	73-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Transmission Cost Recovery Rider	75-1	Cycle 1 July 2009
-	Fuel Adjustment Clause Rider	80-1	Cycle 1 August 2009
	Energy Efficiency and Peak Demand Reduction Cost Recovery Rider	81-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Economic Development Cost Recovery Rider	82-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Enhanced Service Reliability Rider	83-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	gridSMART Rider	84-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Emergency Electrical Procedures	90-1 thru 90-9	Cycle 1 April 2009

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

4. AVAILABLE RATES (Cont'd)

If the customer can meet the requirements of more than one rate schedule, the Company will endeavor to advise the customer as to which rate schedule is the most advantageous for the prospective service. The customer shall then select the rate schedule upon which the contract for service shall be based. The Company under no circumstances guarantees that the rate under which a customer is billed is the most favorable rate.

The customer may change the initial rate schedule selection to another applicable rate schedule at any time by either written notice to Company and/or by executing a new contract for the rate schedule selected, provided that the application of such subsequent selection shall continue for 12 months before any other selection may be made, except when an existing rate is modified or a new rate schedule is offered.

SERVICE CONNECTIONS

The Company will, when requested to furnish service, designate the location of its service connection. The customer's wiring must, except for those cases listed below, be brought out of the building in an approved manner from the main service disconnect to outside the building wall nearest the Company's service wires so as to be readily accessible thereto. The point of service drop attachment shall be as high as the construction of the building will permit, but not more than twenty-five (25) feet nor less than twelve (12) feet from the ground (see National Electric Code for vertical clearance requirements of service drop conductors) and shall be located at a point convenient to the Company's lines for making connections thereto, and each of the service wires shall extend at least eighteen (18) inches from the weatherhead on the end of the conduit or cable for making service connections. Service entrance equipment shall be properly grounded and shall be installed so that the disconnecting means is readily accessible. Where customers install service entrance facilities which have capacity and layout specified by the Company and/or install and use certain utilization equipment specified by the Company, the Company may provide or offer to own certain facilities on the customer's side of the point where the service wires attach to the building.

In areas served by an overhead distribution system, an overhead service shall be provided by the Company from the Company's distribution system extending one span (approximately 100 feet) toward the customer's facilities. When a customer desires that energy be delivered at a point or in a manner other than that designated by the Company, the customer shall pay the additional cost of same. Rights-of-way or easements necessary for the installation of said service (including private railway wire crossings) shall be provided by the customer.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-3)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009 Issued by

Joseph Hamrock, President
AEP Ohio

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

SERVICE CONNECTIONS (Cont'd)

A nonresidential customer desiring an underground service shall, at the customer's expense, install and maintain the necessary service wires, duct work, manholes, vaults and connection boxes in an approved manner from the main entrance switch in the building to a service point designated by the Company, from which connection is to be made. Such underground service will be designed and installed as a continuous run of conductors which shall conform to Company specifications.

Conduit and wires and any equipment, installation and appurtenances furnished, installed and maintained by the customer must conform to the National Electrical Code, as well as applicable governmental requirements.

The Company shall not be required to make any inspection of the wiring, safety switch or other equipment, installation or appurtenances installed and owned by the customer. Any inspection thereof which the Company may make shall be voluntary on its part and for its benefit only, and shall not in any way relieve the customer of any obligations in that respect.

METERS AND METERING EQUIPMENT

The Company will own, furnish, install and maintain the meter or meters. The customer is required to supply, install and maintain the mounting or meter enclosures or sockets. The Company may specify whether the meter or meters are to be installed on the inside or outside the customer's premise and may change such location at its option. When an inside meter installation is made, the customer shall furnish, at the customer's sole expense a suitable meter panel in a convenient and suitable location and so placed that the meter installation will not be more than 7 feet nor tess than 4 feet from the floor. If the location provided by the customer causes the meter to register incorrectly, the Company may require the customer to provide a new meter location acceptable to the Company and to pay the expense of relocation. All costs incident to the relocation of an outside meter made upon the customer's request, or required to be made because of the customer's use of the customer's premises, shall be paid by the customer. The authorized agents or employees of the Company shall have free access at all reasonable hours to the premises of the customer for the purpose of installing, reading, testing and removing meters or other appliances, belonging to the Company.

The customer shall not interfere with, or allow others to interfere with, the Company's meter or any of the wiring on the line side of the meter.

7. METER TESTING

The Company will test its meters at its discretion or at the request of the customer. Any meter found by test to be registering two percent or less than two percent either fast or slow will be considered as registering accurately.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-4)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009 Effective: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

7. METER TESTING (Cont'd)

The Company will test the meter at the request of the customer once at no charge to the customer. Each subsequent test, in which the meter is found to be registering accurately, will result in the cost of such test being borne by the customer.

DEMAND TESTING

Periodic tests for determination of demand, where provided for in various schedules, will be made at the request of the customer, provided that not more than two such requests will be made in any 12 month period.

DEPOSITS

The Company may require a deposit by the customer not exceeding the amount of the estimated monthly average cost of the annual consumption by such customer plus thirty percent, unless such customer be a financially responsible freeholder or give reasonably safe guaranty in an amount sufficient to secure the payment of bills for a sixty days' supply. On any such deposit the customer shall be entitled to interest at the rate of five percent per annum, provided such deposit be left with the Company at least six consecutive months.

CUSTOMER'S LIABILITY

In the event of loss of or injury to the property or equipment of the Company through misuse or negligence of the customer or the customer's employees or invitees, the cost of any necessary repairs or replacement shall be repaid to the Company by the customer. The customer will be held responsible for any tampering or interfering with or breaking the seals of meters or other equipment of the Company installed on the customer's premises and will be held liable for the same according to law.

No responsibility of any kind shall attach to the Company for or on account of any loss, injury or damage caused by or resulting from defects in or inadequacy of the wires, switches, equipment, or appurtenances of the customer, or from the installation, maintenance or use thereof.

USE AND RESALE OF ENERGY.

Electric service will not be supplied to any party contracting with the Company for electric service (hereinafter in this Section 11 called "Customer") except for use exclusively by (i) the Customer at the premises specified in the service request on contract between the Company and the Customer under which service is supplied and (ii) the occupants and tenants of such premises.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-5)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

11. USE AND RESALE OF ENERGY (Cont'd)

Resale of energy will be permitted only by legitimate electric public utilities subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and only by written consent of the Company. In addition, resale of energy will be permitted for electric service and related billing as they apply to the resale or redistribution of electrical service from a landlord to a tenant where the landlord is not operating as a public utility, and the landlord owns the property upon which such resale or redistribution takes place.

BILLING AND BILLS PAYABLE

The customer will be held responsible for all charges for electric energy delivered at the customer's premises. Bills will be rendered for each month's use by the Company to the customer and are payable by mail, checkless payment plan, electronic payment plan or at an authorized payment agent of the Company, on or before the due date thereon specified. Failure to receive a bill will not entitle the customer to any discount or to the remission of any charge for nonpayment within the time specified.

If the customer fails to pay in full any final bill for service rendered and said customer receives like service at another location, the Company may transfer the unpaid balance of the final bill to the service account for any such other location. Like service refers to an end use within the following broad categories: residential, commercial, or industrial. Such amount shall be designated as a past-due amount on the account at such location and subject to collection and disconnection action in accordance with Chapter 4901:1-18 of the Ohio Administrative Code and the Company's filed tariffs, terms and conditions of service, provided that such transfer of a final bill shall not be used to disconnect service to a residential consumer who is not responsible for such bill.

The word "month" as used herein and in rates schedules is hereby defined to be the elapsed time between two successive meter readings approximately 30 days apart. In the event of the stoppage or the failure of any meter to register the correct amount of current consumed, the customer will be billed for such period for an estimated consumption based either upon his use of energy in a similar period of like use or upon a determination based on meter test or from both of these methods combined. Except for residential service accounts, when any bill for electric service supplied by the Company is not paid within fifteen days after the due date thereon, the Company may disconnect its service, without further notice, and will not be required to reconnect service until all charges are paid. A reconnection charge commensurate with the cost of the reconnection, but not less than two dollars and fifty cents may be made for the reconnection of service. For disconnect provisions relating to residential service, see Section 23.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-6)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

13. COLLECTION, RECONNECTION, AND BAD CHECK CHARGES

For charges relating to collection trips, reconnection of service, and bad checks, see Sheet No. 5-1.

14. SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS

The Company will use reasonable diligence in furnishing a regular and uninterrupted supply of electric energy, but in case such supply should be interrupted or fail by reason of an act of God, public enemy, accidents, strikes, legal process, Federal or State or Municipal interference, extraordinary repairs, breakdowns, or damage to the Company's facilities, or for any other reason beyond its control, the Company shall not be liable for damages to the customer because of such interruption or failure.

The Company shall not be liable to the customer for any loss, injury or damage resulting from the customer's use of his equipment or from the use of the energy of the Company, or from the connection of the Company's wires with the customer's wires and appliances.

15. NOTICE TO COMPANY BEFORE INCREASING LOAD

The service connection, transformers, meters and appliances supplied by the Company for each customer have a definite capacity, and no significant additions to the equipment or load connected thereto shall be made until after the consent of the Company has been obtained.

16. NOTICE TO COMPANY OF ANY DEFECT IN ELECTRIC SUPPLY

The customer shall notify the Company promptly of any defect in service or any trouble or accident to the electrical supply.

17. TEMPORARY AND SPECIAL SERVICE

The Company will supply temporary service when it has available unsold capacity in its lines, transformers and generating equipment. Customers who have seasonal operations at permanent locations, or who have other sources of energy supply and desire service for standby or breakdown purposes, must contract for permanent service under a schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will be subject to the terms of that schedule including the minimum bill and term of contract provisions.

The customer will purchase temporary service under any schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will, in addition, pay to the Company, in advance, the Company's estimated total cost of installing and removing its facilities necessary for the temporary service. The total cost will include all material, labor, and overheads, with appropriate credits being given for salvageable material and for facilities to be used in subsequent permanent service.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-7)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

17. TEMPORARY AND SPECIAL SERVICE (Cont'd)

The Company shall not be required to construct general distribution lines underground unless the cost of such special construction for general distribution lines and/or the cost of any change of existing overhead general distribution lines to underground which is required or specified by a municipality or other public authority (to the extent that such cost exceeds the cost of construction of the Company's standard facilities) shall be paid for by that municipality or public authority. The "cost of any change" as used herein, shall be the cost to the Company of such change. The "cost of special construction" as used herein, shall be the actual cost to the Company in excess of the cost of standard construction. When a charge is to be based on the excess cost, the Company and municipality or other public authority shall negotiate the amount thereof.

Temporary service supplied for a period less than one (1) full month will be billed on the basis of a full month's schedule billing, including the minimum charge if applicable.

18. USE OF ENERGY BY CUSTOMER

The apparatus or appliances connected to the Company's lines shall be suitable in every respect to the service supplied by the Company, and shall not be operated in a manner which will cause voltage fluctuations or disturbances in the Company's distributing system or which will be detrimental to the Company's service in any way. All equipment used by the customer shall be of such type as to secure the highest practicable commercial efficiency, power factor and the proper balancing of phases, and shall be protected by proper circuit opening devices approved by the Company. Motors which are frequently started, or motors arranged for automatic control, must be of a type to give maximum starting torque with minimum current flow, and be equipped with controlling devices approved by the Company. If neon, fluorescent and other types of lighting equipment have similar power factor characteristics are installed after the effective date hereof, the customer may be required, upon notice in writing from the Company, to furnish, install, and maintain at the customer's own expense corrective apparatus to increase the power factor of the individual units or the entire group of such units to not less than 90%.

The operation of certain electrical equipment can result in disturbances (e.g., voltage fluctuations, harmonics, etc.) on the Company's transmission and distribution systems which can adversely impact the operation of equipment for other customers. Nonresidential customers are expected to abide by industry standards, such as those contain in ANSI/IEEE 519 or the IEEE/GE voltage flicker criteria, when operating such equipment. In accordance with the Electric Service and Safety Standards, Chapter 4901:1-10-15 (D) of the Ohio Administrative Code, the Company may refuse or disconnect service to nonresidential customers for using electricity or equipment which adversely affects distribution service to other customers. Copies of the applicable criteria will be provided upon request.

The Company's service shall not be operated in parallel with any source or sources of power supply except under special circumstances and upon written consent of the Company.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-8)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE OF COMPANY'S EQUIPMENT.

The Company shall have the right to erect and maintain its poles, lines, and dircuits on the property, and to place and maintain its transformers and other apparatus on the property or within the buildings of the customer at convenient locations. The customer shall allow the use of suitable space for the installation of necessary measuring instruments so that the latter may be protected from damage.

Transformers and appurtenances placed on the property or within the building shall be housed in accordance with the National Electrical Code in a suitable room or vault provided by the customer and, when installed outside upon a mat or slab, shall be protected by an enclosure erected by the customer to guard against loss, damage or injury to persons or property.

20. COMPANY'S AGENTS NOT EMPOWERED TO CHANGE TARIFFS.

No agent or employee of the Company has authority to amend, modify, alter the application, rates, terms, conditions, rules or regulations of the Company on file with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, or to make any promises or representations not contained in P.U.C.O. No. 7, supplements thereto and revisions thereof.

CHANGE OF RATES OR REGULATIONS

Rules and Regulations and rates contained herein are subject to cancellation or modification upon order or permission of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

22. DISCONNECT PROVISIONS - NON-RESIDENTIAL Reasons for Disconnect

The Company reserves the right to discontinue the supply of electric energy and disconnect its lines and remove its property for any of the following reasons:

- A. For any violation of or refusal to comply with the contract and/or the general service rules and regulations on file with the Commission which apply to the customer's service;
- B. In the event the customer uses electricity in a manner detrimental to the service to other customers:
- C. When providing service is in conflict or incompatible with any order of the Commission, laws of the State of Ohio or any political subdivision thereof, or of the federal government or any of its agencies;
- When the customer has moved from the premises;

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-9)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009 Issued by Joseph Hamrock, President

epii Hamirock, Presi AEP Ohio

Effective: December 9, 2009

P.U.C.O. NO. 7

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

22. DISCONNECT PROVISIONS - NON-RESIDENTIAL (Cont'd)

- E. When supplying electricity to any customer creates a dangerous condition on the customer's premises or where, because of conditions beyond the customer's premises, termination of the supply of electricity is reasonably necessary. Service will not be restored until such dangerous condition or conditions have been corrected;
- F. In the event the customer resorts to any fraudulent practice in the obtaining of electricity supplied, or is the beneficiary of any such fraudulent practice, or the Company's meter, metering equipment, or other property used to supply the service has been damaged by the customer, the customer's employees or agents.

Service will not be restored until the customer has given satisfactory assurance that such fraudulent or damaging practice will be discontinued and has paid to the Company an amount estimated by the Company to be reasonable compensation for service fraudulently obtained and not paid for and for any damage to property of the Company including any cost to repair the damage;

- G. For repairs, provided that notice to customers will be given prior to scheduled maintenance interruptions in excess of six hours;
- H. For non-payment; and
- Upon the request of the customer.

Suspension of service for any of the above reasons shall not terminate the contract for service. The authorized agents or employees of the Company shall have free access at all reasonable hours to the premises of the customer for purposes of disconnecting and reconnecting service.

23. ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT FOR RESIDENTIAL UTILITY SERVICE AND DISCONNECT, RECONNECT - PROCEDURES - RESIDENTIAL

The Company's rules for the establishment of credit for residential utility service is governed by Chapter 4901:1-17 of the Ohio Administrative Code, and the Company's disconnect and reconnect procedures for residential customers is governed by Chapter 4901:1-18 of the Ohio Administrative Code. A copy of the above chapters are available for public inspection upon request.

24. DEFINITION OF RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER

The Residential Customer is a customer whose domestic needs for electrical service are limited to their primary single family residence, single occupancy apartment and/or condominium, mobile housing unit, or any other single family residential unit.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-10)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

24. DEFINITION OF RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER (Cont'd)

The residential rate schedules do not apply to commercial or industrial service. If a residential unit is used for both residential and commercial purposes, the appropriate general service rate shall apply unless the wiring is so arranged that the residential usage can be separately metered. The hallways and other common facilities of an apartment and condominium building or apartment and condominium complex are to billed on the appropriate general service rate.

In the event a detached garage or other facility on a Residential Customer's property is separately served and metered, such facility shall accordingly be metered and billed according to the appropriate general service rate.

25. NOMINAL SERVICE VOLTAGES

The Company has established the following nominal service voltages of which at least one of the following characteristics shall be made available to a customer, the particular voltage and service characteristics to be at the option of the Company:

<u>Secondary Distribution System</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 120, 120/208, 120/240 or 240/480 volts, single phase; and 120/208, 120/240, 240, 240/480, 227/480, 480, 2400 and 2400/4160 volts, 3 phase.

<u>Primary Distribution System</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 12,470, 13,200, 13,800 and 34,500 volts, 3 phase.

<u>Subtransmission</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 40,000 volts or 69,000 volts.

<u>Transmission</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 138,000 volts.

The Company shall design and operate its system so that under normal operating conditions the voltage delivered at the customer's service entrance, for the voltages listed above, is maintained within the range of plus or minus 5% of the nominal voltage. Wherever voltages shall be known to exist outside of such range, the Company will take steps to promptly initiate corrective action to restore the voltage level to within such range.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-11)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

26. INTERVAL METERING INSTALLATIONS

A customer may request an interval meter. The cost of any interval metering facilities installed by the Company as a result of such request shall be paid by the customer. The customer shall make a one-time payment for the metering facilities at the time of installation of the requested facilities, or, at the customer's option, up to 24 consecutive equal monthly payments reflecting an annual interest charge as determined by the Company, but not to exceed the cost of the Company's most recent issue of long-term debt. If the customer elects the installment payment option, the Company shall require an initial payment to 25% of the total cost of the metering facilities.

In addition, the customer shall pay a net charge to cover the incremental cost of operation and maintenance and meter data management associated with such interval metering as follows. Charges are for service performed on a Company installed standard interval meter.

Service Performed During Normal Business Hours	
Connect phone line to meter at a time other than the initial interval meter installation	54.00
Perform manual meter reading	39.00
Check phone line and perform manual meter reading due to communication loss	44.00
Repair/replace surge protector	65.00
Repair/replace interval board	146.00
Repair/replace modem board	236.00
Repair/replace interval and modern boards	304.00

The customer may select a meter from the Company's approved equipment list. The customer may communicate with the meter for the purpose of obtaining usage data, subject to the Company's communication protocol. The customer is responsible for providing the telephone line for purposes of reading the meter.

27. PRE ENROLLMENT CUSTOMER INFORMATION LIST

The Company will offer to CRES Providers the Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List with updates available quarterly throughout the Market Development Period. Customers have the option to remove all of their information (including name, address and historical usage data) from the Customer Information List. Customers may also reinstate their information to the Customer Information List. Customers will be notified of such options quarterly throughout the Market Development Period.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-12)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009 Issued by

Joseph Hamrock, President AEP Ohio

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

28. EXTENSION OF LOCAL FACILITIES

The Company shall construct suitable electric transmission and distribution facilities under this line extension policy to serve customer premises when the customer can not be served from existing electrical facilities.

Customers requesting new or expanded electric service shall submit detailed and complete information which may include but not be limited to switch size, requested delivery voltage, total estimated load, listing of connected loads, operating characteristics, site survey plans (showing other utilities or underground infrastructure) and first floor elevations before the Company can develop a plan of service and prepare a construction cost estimate.

The Company will determine the modifications to the Company's transmission and/or distribution facilities required to provide for a basic service plan to serve the customer's load. The Company will design, construct, own, operate and maintain the line extension and all other equipment installed to serve the customer's load up to the point of service for each customer.

Upon receipt of the necessary information from the customer, the Company will comply with Chapter 4901:1-9-07 of the Ohio Administrative Code and exercise its best efforts to expedite the entire process for developing a service plan and preparing a cost estimate.

The Company shall have no obligation to extend, expand or rearrange its facilities if it determines that the existing facilities are adequate to serve the customer's electrical load.

<u>Definitions Used in This Section</u>

- "Basic service plan" means the least cost line extension design using sound engineering practices which meet and/or exceed the National Electrical Safety Code and the Company's construction standards.
- "Contribution in aid of construction or CIAC" means any amount of money or property contributed to the Company to the extent that the purpose of the contribution is to provide for line extensions for new or expanded customer loads.
- 3. "Cost estimate" means the detailed projected expenditure, including material costs and overhead, equipment costs and overhead, labor costs and overhead, and all taxes associated with each major material and service component, required for a line extension. It shall also separately identify any incremental costs associated with providing premium services. The Company may, for the purpose of standardization, establish standard construction cost estimates, for basic or premium service plans, which shall not exceed, in any event, the average cost of constructing such line extensions in the area involved, in which case the term "cost estimate" as used in this section will be understood to mean the standard estimate thus established.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-13)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009 Effective: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

28. EXTENSION OF LOCAL FACILITIES (Cont'd)

- 4. "Line extension" means the provision of facilities (including, but not limited to, poles, fixtures, wires, and appurtenances) necessary for delivering electrical energy from the point of origin to one or more of the customer's points of delivery. Facilities provided by the Company to maintain, protect, upgrade, or improve its overall distribution system (even if necessary due to a customer's load addition) are not considered part of a line extension.
- 5. "Multifamily installation" means any line extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service.
- 6. "Permanent" means a) a structure that has a permanently installed pressurized domestic water system and septic/sewer system which complies with local codes/regulations and is approved for use by the respective sanitation jurisdictional authority, or b) a structure that is approved for installation on a foundational support that is either a mortared masonry pier/column configuration, a poured concrete slab, or a poured concrete footer and mortared masonry walls on the perimeter of the structure.
- 7. "Point of origin" means the point where a line extension under this rule connects with and receives energy from any existing transmission or distribution equipment. The point of origin shall be the nearest practical point to the customers to be served by the line extension at which the appropriate voltage level is available.
- 8. "Premium service" includes, but is not limited to, customer-requested oversizing of facilities, underground construction, three-phase residential service, and any customer request that is in excess of standard construction and requirements necessary to provide electric service to the customer.

Line Extensions

- 1. For line extensions to residential single family homes, both individual homes and homes in a development, unless noted otherwise, the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to five thousand dollars.
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed five thousand dollars. The Company shall afford the nondeveloper, individual homeowner the option of paying those costs, plus carrying costs, on a prorated monthly basis for up to fifty months.
- For line extensions to residential, non-master-metered, multifamily installations (two or more units) the following shall apply:

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-14)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

28. EXTENSION OF LOCAL FACILITIES (Cont'd)

- a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.
- b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
- c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.
- 3. For line extensions to nonresidential customers the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for sixty per cent of the total cost of the line extension, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost to install, in accordance with good utility practice, a standard line extension to the project).
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for forty per cent of the total cost of the line extension plus the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. If a substation is required as part of the line extension project to a customer, the customer shall be given the option of building (pursuant to all applicable electrical standards), owning, and maintaining such substation.
- 4. The payment for premium services and for the cost of residential construction in excess of the limits of five thousand dollars for single-family residences and twenty-five hundred dollars per unit for multifamily residences shall be considered as contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) and shall be grossed-up by the effect of applicable taxes.
- Costs attributed to land clearance activity, trenching, and backfilling required for the installation of line extension facilities on the customer's property are the responsibility of the customer.
- 6. All line extensions shall be the property of and shall be operated and maintained by the Company.
- 7. The Company shall have the right to use any line extension in furnishing service to any applicant located adjacent to such line extension and the further right to construct other extensions from the distribution facilities so constructed.
- 8. Any customer who paid to the Company a CIAC, other than for premium services, may be entitled to a refund of a portion of the CIAC paid in accordance with the following:

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-15)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009 Effective: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

28. EXTENSION OF LOCAL FACILITIES (Cont'd)

- a. If any new customer, within fifty months of the completion of a line extension project for which an existing customer has paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which the CIAC has been paid, the existing customer who paid the CIAC may be entitled to a refund which represents a pro rata portion of the original CIAC calculated to equitably share the CIAC responsibility for those facilities used in service by both the new and original customer.
- b. If any new additional customer, within fifty months of the completion of the line extension project for which existing customers have paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which a CIAC has been paid, any existing customers who paid the CIAC may also be entitled to a refund.
- c. Any refunds made under a. or b., above shall be after payment has been received from the new customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

COLUMBUS SOUTHERN POWER COMPANY COMPLIANCE TARIFF

OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

Filed pursuant to Order in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

P.U.C.O. NO. 7 TABLE OF CONTENTS

Schedule		Sheet No(s)	Effective Date
	Cross Reference	1-1D thru 1-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Table of Contents	1-3D thru 1-4D	December 9, 2009
-	List of Communities Served	2-1D thru 2-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Terms and Conditions of Service	3-1D thru 3-19D	December 9, 2009
-	Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service	3-20D thru 3-37D	December 9, 2009
	Code of Conduct	3-38D thru 3-39D	December 9, 2009
	Miscellaneous Distribution Charges	5-1D thru 5-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Minimum Requirements for Distribution System Interconnection	6-1D thru 6-5D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-R-R	Residential Service	10-1D thru 10-3D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-1	General Service - Small	20-1D thru 20-3D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-2	General Service - Low Load Factor	21-1D thru 21-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-3	General Service - Medium Load Factor	23-1D thru 23-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-4	General Service – Large	24-1D thru 24-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-SBS	Standby Service	27-1D thru 27-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-NEMS	Net Energy Metering Service	28-1D thru 28-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-SL	Street Lighting	40-1D thru 40-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-AL	Private Area Lighting	41-1D thru 41-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-PA	Pole Attachment	43-1D thru 43-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009

(Continued on Sheet No. 1-4D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Supp. No. 21	Public Authority – Delayed Payment	53-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Universal Service Fund Rider	60-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Advanced Energy Fund Rider	61-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	KWH Tax Rider	62-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Provider of Last Resort Charge Rider	69-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Electronic Transfer Rider	70-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Monongahela Power Litigation Termination Rider	73-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Energy Efficiency and Peak Demand Reduction Cost Recovery Rider	81-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Economic Development Cost Recovery Rider	82-1D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Enhanced Service Reliability Rider	83-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	gridSMART Rider	84-1	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Emergency Electrical Procedures	90-1D-90-9D	Cycle 1 April 2009

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

CONTENTS

Paragraph	Section	Sheet
		No.
8.	Available Rates	3-5D
17.	Billing and Bills Payable	3-10D
26.	Change of Rates or Regulations	3-13D
5.	Changing Competitive Service Providers	3-3D
18.	Collection, Reconnection, and Bad Check Charges	3-10D
25.	Company's Agents Not Empowered to Change Tariffs	3-13D
7.	Conditions of Distribution Service	3-5D
2.	Contracts, Applications or Requests for Service	3-1D
4.	Customer Choice of Competitive Service Provider	3-2D
15.	Customer's Liability	3-9D
29.	Definition of Residential Customer	3-14D
12.	Demand Testing	3-7D
14.	Deposits	3-9D
27.	Disconnect Provisions - Nonresidential - Reasons for Disconnect	3-13D
28.	Establishment of Credit for Residential Utility Service and Disconnect,	3-14D
	Reconnect – Procedures – Residential	0.400
33.	Extension of Local Facilities	3-16D
24.	Location and Maintenance of Company's Equipment	3-13D
32.	Losses	3-16D
11.	Meter Testing	3-7D
13.	Metering and Load Profiling	3-8D
10.	Meters and Metering Equipment	3-7D
6.	Minimum Stay Requirements	3-4D
30.	Nominal Service Voltages	3-15D
20.	Notice to Company Before Increasing Load	3-11D
21.	Notice to Company of Any Defect in Distribution Service	3-11D
9.	Service Connection	3-6D
19.	Service Interruptions	3-11D
22.	Temporary and Special Service	3-11D
3.	Term of Contract	3-2D
31.	Transmission Service	3-15D
16.	Use and Resale of Energy	3-9D
23.	Use of Energy by Customer	3-12D

2. CONTRACTS, APPLICATIONS OR REQUESTS FOR DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

These terms and conditions of service apply to service under the Company's open access distribution schedules which provide for distribution service, irrespective of the voltage level at which service is taken, from the Company, as provided for in Sections 4928.15 and 4928.40, Ohio Revised Code.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-2D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

If the customer can meet the requirements of more than one open access distribution schedule, the Company will endeavor to advise the customer as to which open access distribution schedule is the most advantageous for the prospective service. The customer shall then select the open access distribution schedule upon which the contract for distribution service shall be based. The Company under no circumstances guarantees that the rate under which a customer is billed is the most favorable open access distribution rate.

The customer may change the initial open access distribution schedule selection to another applicable open access distribution schedule at any time by either written notice to the Company and/or by executing a new contract for the open access distribution schedule selected, provided that the application of such subsequent selection shall continue for 12 months before any other selection may be made, except when an existing rate is modified or a new open access distribution schedule is offered.

SERVICE CONNECTION

The Company will, when requested to furnish service, designate the location of its service connection. The customer's wiring must, except for those cases listed below, be brought out of the building in an approved manner from the main service disconnect to outside the building wall nearest the Company's service wires so as to be readily accessible thereto. The point of service drop attachment shall be as high as the construction of the building will permit, but not more than twenty-five (25) feet nor less than twelve (12) feet from the ground (see National Electric Code for vertical clearance requirements of service drop conductors) and shall be located at a point convenient to the Company's lines for making connections thereto, and each of the service wires shall extend at least eighteen (18) inches from the weatherhead on the end of the conduit or cable for making service connections. Service entrance equipment shall be properly grounded and shall be installed so that the disconnecting means is readily accessible. Where customers install service entrance facilities which have capacity and layout specified by the Company and/or install and use certain utilization equipment specified by the Company, the Company may provide or offer to own certain facilities on the customer's side of the point where the service wires attach to the building.

In areas served by an overhead distribution system, an overhead service shall be provided by the Company from the Company's system extending one span (approximately 100 feet) toward the customer's facilities. When a customer desires that energy be delivered at a point or in a manner other than that designated by the Company, the customer shall pay the additional cost of same. Rights-of-way or easements necessary for the installation of said service (including private railway wire crossings) shall be provided by the customer.

A nonresidential customer desiring an underground service shall, at the customer's expense, install and maintain the necessary service wires, duct work, manholes, vaults and connection boxes in an approved manner from the main entrance switch in the building to a service point designated by the Company, from which connection is to be made. Such underground service will be designed and installed as a continuous run of conductors which shall conform to Company specifications.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-7D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009 Effective: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

Conduit and wires and any equipment, installation and appurtenances furnished, installed and maintained by the customer must conform to the National Electrical Code, as well as applicable governmental requirements.

The Company shall not be required to make any inspection of the wiring, safety switch or other equipment, installation or appurtenances installed and owned by the customer. Any inspection thereof which the Company may make shall be voluntary on its part and for its benefit only, and shall not in any way relieve the customer of any obligations in that respect.

10. METERS AND METERING EQUIPMENT

The Company will own, furnish, install and maintain the meter or meters unless the customer elects metering service from a qualified MSP. The customer is required to supply, install and maintain the mounting or meter enclosures or sockets. The Company or MSP may specify whether the meter or meters are to be installed on the inside or outside the customer's premise and may change such location at its option. When an inside meter installation is made, the customer shall furnish, at the customer's sole expense, a suitable meter panel in a convenient and suitable location and so placed that the meter installation will not be more than 7 feet nor less than 4 feet from the floor. If the location provided by the customer causes the meter to register incorrectly, the Company or MSP may require the customer to provide a new meter location acceptable to the Company and to pay the expense of relocation. All costs incident to the relocation of an outside meter made upon the customer's request, or required to be made because of customer's use of premises, shall be paid by the customer. The authorized agents or employees of the Company shall have free access at all reasonable hours to the premises of the customer for the purpose of installing, reading, testing and removing meters or other appliances, belonging to the Company.

The customer shall not interfere with, or allow others to interfere with, the meter or any of the wiring on the line side of the meter, regardless of ownership of the meter.

11. METER TESTING

The Company will test its meters at its discretion or at the request of the customer. Any meter found by test to be registering two percent or less than two percent either fast or slow will be considered as registering accurately.

The Company will test its meter at the request of the customer once at no charge to the customer. Each subsequent test, in which the meter is found to be registering accurately, will result in the cost of such test being borne by the customer.

12. DEMAND TESTING

Periodic tests of Company meters for determination of demand, where provided for in various open access distribution schedules, will be made at the request of the customer, provided that not more than two such requests will be made in any 12-month period.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-8D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009 Effective: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

13. METERING AND LOAD PROFILING

All customers with maximum monthly billing demands of 200 KW or greater for the most recent twelve (12) months shall be interval metered. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may request an interval meter for customers with maximum monthly billing demands less than 200 kW.

The cost of any interval metering facilities installed by the Company to comply with this requirement or as a result of such request shall be paid by the customer. The customer shall make a one-time payment for the metering facilities at the time of installation of the required facilities, or, at the customer's option, up to 24 consecutive equal monthly payments reflecting an annual interest charge as determined by the Company, but not to exceed the cost of the Company's most recent issue of long-term debt. If the customer elects the installment payment option, the Company shall require an initial payment equal to 25% of the total cost of the metering facilities.

In addition, the customer shall pay a net charge to cover the incremental cost of operation and maintenance and meter data management associated with such interval metering as follows. Charges are for service performed on a Company installed standard interval meter.

Service Performed During Normal Business Hours	Charge (\$)
Connect phone line to meter at a time other than the initial interval	
meter installation	54.00
Perform manual meter reading	39.00
Check phone line and perform manual meter reading due to communication loss	44.00
Repair/replace surge protector	65.00
Repair/replace interval board	146.00
Repair/replace modem board	236.00
Repair/replace interval and modem boards	304.00

The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may select a meter from the Company's approved equipment list. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may communicate with the meter for the purpose of obtaining usage data, subject to the Company's communication protocol. The customer is responsible for providing the telephone line for purposes of reading the meter.

A customer that is required to have interval metering must approve a work order for interval meter installation before a CRES Provider may serve such customer. During the period between when the customer has requested an interval meter and the time that the Company is able to install such a meter, a Company load profile will be used for settlement purposes and consumption meter readings will be used for billing.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-9D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009 Issued by

Joseph Hamrock, President
AEP Ohio

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

All load profiling shall be performed by the Company. Sample data and customer specific interval metering, when available, will be used in the development of the total load profile for which a CRES Provider is responsible for providing generation and possibly for arranging transmission services. Such data shall be provided to the BA or other entities as required for monthly billing.

DEPOSITS

The Company may require a deposit by the customer not exceeding the amount of the estimated monthly average cost of the distribution service for such customer plus thirty percent, unless such customer be a financially responsible freeholder or give reasonably safe guaranty in an amount sufficient to secure the payment of bills for a sixty days' supply. On any such deposit, the customer shall be entitled to interest at the rate of five percent per annum, provided such deposit be left with the Company at least six consecutive months.

15. CUSTOMER'S LIABILITY

In the event of loss of or injury to the property or equipment of the Company through misuse or negligence of the customer or the customer's employees or invitees, the cost of any necessary repairs or replacement shall be repaid to the Company by the customer. The customer will be held responsible for any tampering or interfering with or breaking the seals of meters or related apparatus, regardless of ownership of the meter, or other equipment of the Company installed on the customer's premises and will be held liable for the same according to law.

No responsibility of any kind shall attach to the Company for or on account of any loss, injury or damage caused by or resulting from defects in or inadequacy of the wires, switches, equipment, or appurtenances of the customer, or from the installation, maintenance or use thereof.

USE AND RESALE OF ENERGY

Electric service will not be delivered to any party contracting with the Company for distribution service (hereinafter in this Section 16 called "customer") except for use exclusively by (i) the customer at the premises specified in the service request or contract between the Company and the customer under which service is supplied and (ii) the occupants and tenants of such premises.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-10D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

17. BILLING AND BILLS PAYABLE

The customer will be held responsible for all charges for distribution service. Bills for distribution service will be rendered by the Company to the customer monthly and are payable by mail, checkless payment plan, electronic payment plan or at an authorized payment agent of the Company, on or before the due date thereon specified. Failure to receive a bill for distribution service will not entitle the customer to any discount or the remission of any charge for nonpayment within the time specified.

If the customer fails to pay in full any final bill for distribution service rendered and said customer receives like service at another location, the Company may transfer the unpaid balance of the final bill to the service account for any such other location. Like service refers to an end use within the following broad categories: residential, commercial, or industrial. Such amount shall be designated as a past-due amount on the account at such location and subject to collection and disconnection action in accordance with Chapter 4901:1-18 of the Ohio Administrative Code and the Company's filed tariffs, terms and conditions of service, provided that such transfer of a final bill shall not be used to disconnect service to a residential customer who is not responsible for such bill.

The word "month" as used herein and in the open access distribution schedules is hereby defined to be the elapsed time between two successive meter readings approximately 30 days apart. In the event of the stoppage or the failure of any meter to register the correct amount of current consumed, the customer will be billed for such period for an estimated consumption based either upon his use of energy in a similar period of like use or upon a determination based on meter test or from both of these methods combined. Except for residential service accounts, when any bill for distribution service supplied by the Company is not paid within fifteen days after the due date thereon, the Company may disconnect its service, without further notice, and will not be required to reconnect service until all charges are paid. A reconnection charge commensurate with the cost of the reconnection, but not less than two dollars and fifty cents may be made for the reconnection of service. For disconnect provisions relating to residential service, see Section 28.

At the Company's discretion, any customer receiving Company consolidated billing with a CRES Provider billing arrearage of more than 60 days may be switched back to the Company's Standard Offer Service and will not be permitted to select a new CRES Provider until the arrearage is paid.

18. COLLECTION, RECONNECTION, AND BAD CHECK CHARGES

For charges relating to collection trips, reconnection of service, and bad checks, see Sheet No. 5-1D.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-11D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

SERVICE INTERRUPTIONS

The Company will use reasonable diligence in furnishing a regular and uninterrupted distribution service, but in case such delivery should be interrupted or fail by reason of an act of God, public enemy, accidents, strikes, legal process, Federal or State or Municipal interference, extraordinary repairs, breakdowns, or damage to the Company's facilities, or for any other reason beyond its control, the Company shall not be liable for damages to the customer because of such interruption or failure.

The Company shall not be liable for damages in case such service should be interrupted or by failure of the customer's CRES Provider to provide appropriate energy to the Company for delivery to the customer.

The Company shall not be liable to the customer for any loss, injury or damage resulting from the customer's use of equipment or from the use of the distribution service of the Company, or from the connection of the Company's wires with the customer's wires and appliances.

20. NOTICE TO COMPANY BEFORE INCREASING LOAD

The service connection, transformers, meters and appliances supplied by the Company for each customer have a definite capacity, and no significant additions to the equipment or load connected thereto shall be made until after the consent of the Company has been obtained.

21. NOTICE TO COMPANY OF ANY DEFECT IN DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

The customer shall notify the Company promptly of any defect in service or any trouble or accident to the distribution facilities.

22. TEMPORARY AND SPECIAL SERVICE

The Company will supply temporary service when it has available unsold capacity in its lines, transformers and generating equipment. Customers who have seasonal operations at permanent locations, or who have other sources of energy supply and desire service for standby or breakdown purposes, must contract for permanent service under a schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will be subject to the terms of that schedule including the minimum bill and term of contract provisions.

The customer will purchase temporary service under any schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will, in addition, pay to the Company, in advance, the Company's estimated total cost of installing and removing its facilities necessary for the temporary service. The total cost will include all material, labor, and overheads, with appropriate credits being given for salvageable material and for facilities to be used in subsequent permanent service.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-12D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

The Company shall not be required to construct general distribution lines underground unless the cost of such special construction for general distribution lines and/or the cost of any change of existing overhead general distribution lines to underground which is required or specified by a municipality or other public authority (to the extent that such cost exceeds the cost of construction of the Company's standard facilities) shall be paid for by that municipality or public authority. The "cost of any change" as used herein, shall be the cost to the Company of such change. The "cost of special construction" as used herein, shall be the actual cost to the Company in excess of the cost of standard construction. When a charge is to be based on the excess cost, the Company and municipality or other public authority shall negotiate the amount thereof.

Temporary service supplied for a period less than one (1) full month will be billed on the basis of a full month's schedule billing, including the minimum charge if applicable.

23. USE OF ENERGY BY CUSTOMER

The apparatus or appliances connected to the Company's lines shall be suitable in every respect to the distribution service supplied by the Company, and shall not be operated in a manner which will cause voltage fluctuations or disturbances in the Company's distributing system or which will be detrimental to the Company's service in any way. All equipment used by the customer shall be of such type as to secure the highest practicable commercial efficiency, power factor and the proper balancing of phases, and shall be protected by proper circuit opening devices approved by the Company. Motors which are frequently started, or motors arranged for automatic control, must be of a type to give maximum starting torque with minimum current flow, and be equipped with controlling devices approved by the Company. If neon, fluorescent and other types of lighting equipment having similar power factor characteristics are installed after the effective date hereof, the customer may be required, upon notice in writing from the Company, to furnish, install, and maintain at the customer's own expense corrective apparatus to increase the power factor of the individual units or the entire group of such units to not less than 90%.

The operation of certain electrical equipment can result in disturbances (e.g. voltage fluctuations, harmonics, etc.) on the transmission and distribution systems which can adversely impact the operation of equipment for other customers. Nonresidential customers are expected to abide by industry standards, such as those contained in ANSI/IEEE 519 or the IEEE/GE voltage flicker criteria, when operating such equipment. In accordance with the Electric Service and Safety Standards, Chapter 4901:1-10-15 (D) of the Ohio Administrative Code, the Company may refuse or disconnect service to nonresidential customers for using electricity or equipment which adversely affects distribution service to other customers. Copies of the applicable criteria will be provided upon request.

The Company's distribution service shall not be operated in parallel with any source or sources of power supply except under special circumstances and upon written consent of the Company.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-13D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

24. LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE OF COMPANY'S EQUIPMENT

The Company shall have the right to erect and maintain its poles, lines, and circuits on the property, and to place and maintain its transformers and other apparatus on the property or within the buildings of the customer at convenient locations. The customer shall allow the use of suitable space for the installation of necessary measuring instruments so that the latter may be protected from damage.

Transformers and appurtenances placed on the property or within the building shall be housed in accordance with the National Electrical Code in a suitable room or vault provided by the customer and, when installed outside upon a mat or slab, shall be protected by an enclosure erected by the customer to guard against loss, damage or injury to persons or property.

COMPANY'S AGENTS NOT EMPOWERED TO CHANGE TARIFFS

No agent or employee of the Company has authority to amend, modify, alter the application, rates, terms, conditions, rules or regulations of the Company on file with the Commission, or to make any promises or representations not contained in P.U.C.O. No. 7, supplements thereto and revisions thereof.

CHANGE OF RATES OR REGULATIONS

Rules and Regulations and distribution rates contained herein are subject to cancellation or modification upon order or permission of the Commission.

DISCONNECT PROVISIONS – NONRESIDENTIAL

Reasons for Disconnect

The Company reserves the right to discontinue distribution service and disconnect its lines and remove its property for any of the following reasons:

- For any violation of or refusal to comply with the contract and/or the general service rules and regulations on file with the Commission which apply to the customer's service;
- b) In the event the customer uses electricity in a manner detrimental to the service to other customers:
- c) When providing distribution service is in conflict or incompatible with any order of the Commission, laws of the State of Ohio or any political subdivision thereof, or of the federal government or any of its agencies;
- d) When the customer has moved from the premises;

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-14D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

- e) When supplying distribution service to any customer creates a dangerous condition on the customer's premises or where, because of conditions beyond the customer's premises, termination of the supply of electricity is reasonably necessary. Service will not be restored until such dangerous condition or conditions have been corrected;
- f) In the event the customer resorts to any fraudulent practice in the obtaining of electricity delivered, or is the beneficiary of any such fraudulent practice, or the Company's meter, metering equipment, or other property used to supply the distribution service, regardless of ownership has been damaged by the customer, customer employees or agents.
 - Distribution service will not be restored until the customer has given satisfactory assurance that such fraudulent or damaging practice will be discontinued and has paid an amount estimated to be reasonable compensation for service fraudulently obtained and not paid for any damage to property of the Company including any cost to repair the damage;
- g) For repairs, provided that notice to customers will be given prior to scheduled maintenance interruptions in excess of six hours;
- h) For non-payment; and
- Upon the request of the customer.

Suspension of distribution service for any of the above reasons shall not terminate the contract for distribution service. The authorized agents or employees of the Company shall have free access at all reasonable hours to the premises of the customer for purposes of disconnecting and reconnecting service.

28. ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT FOR RESIDENTIAL UTILITY SERVICE AND DISCONNECT, RECONNECT - PROCEDURES - RESIDENTIAL

The Company's rules for the establishment of credit for residential utility service is governed by Chapter 4901:1-17 of the Ohio Administrative Code, and the Company's disconnect and reconnect procedures for residential customers is governed by Chapter 4901:1-18 of the Ohio Administrative Code.

29. DEFINITION OF RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER

The residential customer is a customer whose domestic needs for distribution service are limited to their primary single family residence, single occupancy apartment and/or condominium, mobile housing unit, or any other single family residential unit.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-15D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

The residential open access distribution schedules do not apply to commercial or industrial service. If a residential unit is used for both residential and commercial purposes, the appropriate general service open access distribution schedule shall apply unless the wiring is so arranged that the residential usage can be separately metered. The hallways and other common facilities of an apartment and condominium building or apartment and condominium complex are to be billed on the appropriate general service open access distribution schedule.

In the event a detached garage or other facility on a residential customer's property is separately served and metered such facility shall accordingly be metered and billed according to the appropriate general service open access distribution schedule.

30. NOMINAL SERVICE VOLTAGES

The Company has established the following nominal service voltages of which at least one of the following characteristics shall be made available to a customer, the particular voltage and service characteristics to be at the option of the Company:

<u>Secondary Distribution System</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 120, 120/208, 120/240 or 240/480 volts, single phase; and 120/208, 120/240, 240, 240/480, 277/480, 480, 2400, and 2400/4160 volts, 3 phase.

<u>Primary Distribution System</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 12,470, 13,200, 13,800 and 34,500 volts, 3 phase.

<u>Subtransmission</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 40,000 volts or 69,000 volts.

<u>Transmission</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 138,000 volts.

31. TRANSMISSION SERVICE

Transmission service shall be made available under the terms and conditions contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff as filed with and accepted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. Either a CRES Provider or the customer may contract with the Transmission Provider for transmission service under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. The Transmission Provider is the applicable regional transmission entity. PJM Interconnection LLC is currently the applicable regional transmission entity. Customers contracting with the Transmission Provider for transmission service and all CRES Providers must complete all required actions relative to membership with the Transmission Provider and be authorized by the Transmission Provider to transact business with regard to transmission service. The contracting entity or its designee is responsible for scheduling under the tariff. Unless other arrangements have been made, the scheduling entity will be billed by the Transmission Provider for transmission services. The contracting entity must also purchase or provide ancillary services as specified under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-16D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

Billing and payment shall be performed as specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Any remaining unpaid amounts and associated fees for transmission service are the responsibility of the customer.

Provisions for scheduling and imbalance are contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

LOSSES

Either the CRES Provider or the Transmission Provider may provide both transmission and distribution losses as required to serve customers at various delivery voltages. If a CRES Provider arranges to provide transmission losses under the provisions of the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff, then the CRES Provider must also arrange for the appropriate distribution losses. Customers served at transmission and subtransmission voltages require no additional losses other than the losses specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Customers served at primary distribution voltage require 1.9% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer. Customers served at secondary distribution voltage require 5.1% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer.

33. EXTENSION OF LOCAL FACILITIES

The Company shall construct suitable electric transmission and distribution facilities under this line extension policy to serve customer premises when the customer can not be served from existing electrical facilities.

Customers requesting new or expanded electric service shall submit detailed and complete information which may include but not be limited to switch size, requested delivery voltage, total estimated load, listing of connected loads, operating characteristics, site survey plans (showing other utilities or underground infrastructure) and first floor elevations before the Company can develop a plan of service and prepare a construction cost estimate.

The Company will determine the modifications to the Company's transmission and/or distribution facilities required to provide for a basic service plan to serve the customer's load. The Company will design, construct, own, operate and maintain the line extension and all other equipment installed to serve the customer's load up to the point of service for each customer.

Upon receipt of the necessary information from the customer, the Company will comply with Chapter 4901:1-9-07 of the Ohio Administrative Code and exercise its best efforts to expedite the entire process for developing a service plan and preparing a cost estimate.

The Company shall have no obligation to extend, expand or rearrange its facilities if it determines that the existing facilities are adequate to serve the customer's electrical load.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-17D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

Definitions Used in This Section

- "Basic service plan" means the least cost line extension design using sound engineering practices which meet and/or exceed the National Electrical Safety Code and the Company's construction standards.
- "Contribution in aid of construction or CIAC" means any amount of money or property contributed to the Company to the extent that the purpose of the contribution is to provide for line extensions for new or expanded customer loads.
- 3. "Cost estimate" means the detailed projected expenditure, including material costs and overhead, equipment costs and overhead, labor costs and overhead, and all taxes associated with each major material and service component, required for a line extension. It shall also separately identify any incremental costs associated with providing premium services. The Company may, for the purpose of standardization, establish standard construction cost estimates, for basic or premium service plans, which shall not exceed, in any event, the average cost of constructing such line extensions in the area involved, in which case the term "cost estimate" as used in this section will be understood to mean the standard estimate thus established.
- 4. "Line extension" means the provision of facilities (including, but not limited to, poles, fixtures, wires, and appurtenances) necessary for delivering electrical energy from the point of origin to one or more of the customer's points of delivery. Facilities provided by the Company to maintain, protect, upgrade, or improve its overall distribution system (even if necessary due to a customer's load addition) are not considered part of a line extension.
- 5. "Multifamily installation" means any line extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service.
- 6. "Permanent" means a) a structure that has a permanently installed pressurized domestic water system and septic/sewer system which complies with local codes/regulations and is approved for use by the respective sanitation jurisdictional authority, or b) a structure that is approved for installation on a foundational support that is either a mortared masonry pier/column configuration, a poured concrete slab, or a poured concrete footer and mortared masonry walls on the perimeter of the structure.
- 7. "Point of origin" means the point where a line extension under this rule connects with and receives energy from any existing transmission or distribution equipment. The point of origin shall be the nearest practical point to the customers to be served by the line extension at which the appropriate voltage level is available.
- 8. "Premium service" includes, but is not limited to, customer-requested oversizing of facilities, underground construction, three-phase residential service, and any customer request that is in excess of standard construction and requirements necessary to provide electric service to the customer.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-18D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

Line Extensions

- 1. For line extensions to residential single family homes, both individual homes and homes in a development, unless noted otherwise, the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to five thousand dollars.
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed five thousand dollars. The Company shall afford the nondeveloper, individual homeowner the option of paying those costs, plus carrying costs, on a prorated monthly basis for up to fifty months.
- 2. For line extensions to residential, non-master-metered, multifamily installations (two or more units) the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.
- 3. For line extensions to nonresidential customers the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for sixty per cent of the total cost of the line extension, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost to install, in accordance with good utility practice, a standard line extension to the project).
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for forty per cent of the total cost of the line extension plus the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. If a substation is required as part of the line extension project to a customer, the customer shall be given the option of building (pursuant to all applicable electrical standards), owning, and maintaining such substation.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-19D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

- 4. The payment for premium services and for the cost of residential construction in excess of the limits of five thousand dollars for single-family residences and twenty-five hundred dollars per unit for multifamily residences shall be considered as contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) and shall be grossed-up by the effect of applicable taxes.
- Costs attributed to land clearance activity, trenching, and backfilling required for the installation of line extension facilities on the customer's property are the responsibility of the customer.
- 6. All line extensions shall be the property of and shall be operated and maintained by the Company.
- The Company shall have the right to use any line extension in furnishing service to any
 applicant located adjacent to such line extension and the further right to construct other
 extensions from the distribution facilities so constructed.
- 8. Any customer who paid to the Company a CIAC, other than for premium services, may be entitled to a refund of a portion of the CIAC paid in accordance with the following:
 - a. If any new customer, within fifty months of the completion of a line extension project for which an existing customer has paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which the CIAC has been paid, the existing customer who paid the CIAC may be entitled to a refund which represents a pro rata portion of the original CIAC calculated to equitably share the CIAC responsibility for those facilities used in service by both the new and original customer.
 - b. If any new additional customer, within fifty months of the completion of the line extension project for which existing customers have paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which a CIAC has been paid, any existing customers who paid the CIAC may also be entitled to a refund.
 - Any refunds made under a. or b., above shall be after payment has been received from the new customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

CONTENTS

Paragraph	Section	Sheet No.
2.	Application	3-20D
24.	Billing Corrections	3-36D
4.	Changing Competitive Service Providers	3-21D
21.	Company's Liability	3-35D
22.	Competitive Service Provider's Liability	3-36D
12.	Confidentiality of Information	3-29D
16.	Consolidated Billing by a Billing Agent	3-32D
17.	Consolidated Billing by the Company	3-34D
10.	CRES Provider Credit Requirements	3-25D
9.	CRES Provider Registration with the Company	3-24D
3.	Customer Choice of Competitive Service Provider	3-21D
11.	Customer Enrollment Process	3-26D
19.	Deposits	3-35D
6.	General Provisions for Competitive Service Providers	3-23D
13.	Losses	3-29D
15.	Meter Data Management Agents (MDMAs)	3-31D
23.	Meter Accuracy and Tests	3-36D
14.	Meter Service Providers (MSPs)	3-29D
18.	Metering and Load Profiling	3-34D
5.	Minimum Stay Requirements	3-23D
20.	Payments	3-35D
8.	Supplier Certification with the Commission	3-24D
25.	Termination or Suspension of a CRES Provider	3-37D
7.	Transmission Service	3-24D

2. APPLICATION

These Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service apply to any person, firm, copartnership, voluntary association, joint-stock association, company or corporation, wherever organized or incorporated, that is engaged in the business of supplying electricity to customers that take distribution service from the Company. These Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service also apply to any such entity that is engaged in the business of providing metering, meter data management and billing services to customers that take distribution service from the Company.

A copy of the Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service under which service is to be rendered will be furnished upon request.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-21D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

3. CUSTOMER CHOICE OF COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDER

Customers taking service under the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service may elect energy services from a qualified CRES Provider, metering services from a qualified Meter Service Provider (MSP), meter data management services from a qualified Meter Data Management Agent (MDMA) and/or billing services from a qualified Billing Agent (BA). Any MSP, MDMA and/or BA services provided to the customer must be arranged through the CRES Provider who provides energy services to the customer.

Qualifications and other eligibility criteria for such entities are specified herein. CRES Providers, MSPs, MDMAs and BAs are also subject to the rules and certification criteria established by the Commission for such entities as incorporated herein. CRES Providers, MSPs, MDMAs and BAs are collectively referred to as Competitive Service Providers (CSPs).

Any customer who desires service from a CSP must first contract with a CRES Provider who will arrange for the provision of such services. The CRES Provider shall then notify the Company at least twelve (12) calendar days prior to the customer's regularly scheduled meter reading date after which the customer will receive service from the CSP. All changes in CRES Provider shall occur at the end of the customer's regularly scheduled meter reading date. Any request to change a customer's CRES Provider received after twelve (12) calendar days prior to the customer's regularly scheduled meter reading date shall become effective the subsequent billing month.

Upon request, customers will be sent an information package containing a summary of the Customer Choice program and a current list of CRES Providers.

The list of CRES Providers will be provided to any customer upon request, all new customers, any customer who is dropped for nonpayment by a CRES Provider, and any customer who returns to the Company's Standard Offer Service due to default by a CRES Provider.

The list of CRES Providers will be posted on the Company's website. The list of CRES Providers will contain the names of those CRES Providers currently registered to enroll and actively seeking residential customers in the Company's service territory.

CHANGING COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDERS

During the Market Development Period, Standard Offer Service will be provided under the Company's standard schedules.

Customers may change CSPs no more than once during any month subject to the provisions below.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-22D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Requests to change a customer's CRES Provider must be received by the Company from the new CRES Provider. If the Company receives such a request to change a customer's CRES Provider, the customer shall be notified by the Company concerning the requested change within two business days. If the customer challenges the requested change, the change will not be initiated. The customer has seven (7) days from the postmark date on the notice to contact the Company to rescind the enrollment request or notify the Company that the change of CRES Provider was not requested by the customer. Within two business days after receiving a customer request to rescind enrollment with a CRES Provider, the Company shall initiate such rescission and mail the customer confirmation that such action has been taken.

Any request for initial service for a customer under the Company's open access distribution schedules or subsequent changes to a customer's MSP, MDMA and/or BA must be provided by the CRES Provider that provides energy services to the customer and arranges for such MSP, MDMA and/or BA services on behalf of the customer. The CRES Provider must obtain, and maintain documentation of, authorization from the customer for any changes in MSP, MDMA and/or BA.

The customer shall pay a charge of \$10.00 to the Company for each transaction in which a customer authorizes a change in one or more CSPs. However, this switching charge shall not apply in the following specific circumstances: (a) the customer's initial change to service under the Company's open access distribution schedules and service from a CRES Provider, (b) the customer's CRES Provider is changed involuntarily, (c) the customer returns to service from the customer's former CRES Provider following an involuntary change in CRES Provider, or (d) the customer's former CRES Provider's services have been permanently terminated and the customer must choose another CRES Provider.

In the event that a CSP's services are permanently terminated, and the CSP has not provided for service to the effected customers, the CSP shall send timely notification to the Company and the effected customers regarding the termination of such services. Such notification shall describe the process for selecting a new CSP and note that service will be provided by the Company under the Company's Standard Offer Service if a new CSP is not selected.

A customer's return to the Company's Standard Offer Service may be a result of customer choice, CRES Provider default, termination of a CRES Provider contract, opt out or termination of a governmental aggregation program, or CRES Provider withdrawal. A customer will be returned to Standard Offer Service only after the customer fails to choose an alternative CRES Provider.

A customer may contact the Company and request to return to the Company's Standard Offer Service. The return to Standard Offer Service shall be conducted under the same terms and conditions applicable to an enrollment with a CRES Provider. The customer will have a seven (7) calendar day rescission period after requesting the Company's Standard Offer Service. Provided the customer has observed the applicable notification requirements and the Company has effectuated the request to return to Standard Offer Service at least twelve (12) calendar days prior to the next regularly scheduled meter reading date, the customer will be returned to Standard Offer Service on the next regularly scheduled meter reading date.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-23D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

5. MINIMUM STAY REQUIREMENTS

Large commercial and industrial customers returning to Standard Offer Service must remain on Standard Offer Service for a period of not less than twelve (12) consecutive months.

Customers served under residential and small commercial (GS-1) rate schedules returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service will not be subject to a minimum stay requirement during the first year of the Market Development Period. After the first year of the Market Development Period, any such customer returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service must remain on the Company's Standard Offer Service through April 15 of the following year if that customer received the Company's Standard Offer Service at any time during the period from May 16 to September 15.

A customer returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service as a result of opting out of a governmental aggregation program or as a result of a CRES Provider default during the Market Development Period as described in Sections 4928.20(D) and 4928.35(D), Ohio Revised Code, will not be subject to the above minimum stay requirements.

Customers of a governmental aggregation where the legislative authority that formed such governmental aggregation has filed written notice with the Commission pursuant to Section 4928.20 (J), Ohio Revised Code, that it has elected not to receive default service from the Company at standard service offer rates may not return to the Company's standard service offer. Such customers shall pay for service at the prevailing market price of power plus costs of the Company's compliance with the alternative energy resource provisions of section 4928.64, Ohio Revised Code.

Any residential or small commercial customer returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service and subject to the minimum stay provision will be given appropriate notice by the Company. The customer will be given at least 14 days notice that the customer will be returned to the Company's Standard Offer Service subject to the minimum stay period provision above if the customer fails to choose another alternative. Such notice will clearly specify (1) the date by which the customer must choose another CRES Provider or alternative and that the customer will return to the Company's Standard Offer Service if the customer fails to make such choice; (2) the minimum stay period during which the customer will be ineligible to choose another CRES Provider; and (3) any alternatives available to the customer to avoid the minimum stay period.

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDERS

A CSP must comply with all rules and requirements established by the Commission pertaining, but not limited to, general business practices, information disclosure, customer contract rescission, dispute resolution, customer authorization for switching suppliers, termination of customer contracts, information exchange and supply obligations. A CSP must also agree to comply with all applicable provisions of the Company's open access distribution service schedules, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, and the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. A CSP must also comply with the National Electrical Safety Code if applicable to the service provided by the CSP.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-24D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

No more than two CRES Providers may provide Competitive Retail Electric Service to a customer during any given billing month.

A customer is not permitted to have partial Competitive Retail Electric Service. The CRES Provider(s) shall be responsible for providing the total energy consumed by the customer during any given billing month.

TRANSMISSION SERVICE

Transmission service shall be made available under the terms and conditions contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff as filed with and accepted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. Either a CRES Provider or the customer may contract with the Transmission Provider for transmission service under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. The Transmission Provider is the applicable regional transmission entity. PJM Interconnection LLC is currently the applicable regional transmission entity. Customers contracting with the Transmission Provider for transmission service and all CRES Providers must complete all required actions relative to membership with the Transmission Provider and be authorized by the Transmission Provider to transact business with regard to transmission service. The contracting entity or its designee is responsible for scheduling under the tariff. Unless other arrangements have been made, the scheduling entity will be billed by the Transmission Provider for transmission services. The contracting entity must also purchase or provide ancillary services as specified under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

Billing and payment shall be performed as specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Any remaining unpaid amounts and associated fees for transmission service are the responsibility of the customer.

Provisions for scheduling and imbalance are contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

8. SUPPLIER CERTIFICATION WITH THE COMMISSION

Suppliers desiring to become CRES Providers must first be certified by the Commission and shall be subject to any certification criteria adopted by the Commission according to Section 4928.08, Ohio Revised Code.

CRES PROVIDER REGISTRATION WITH THE COMPANY

CRS Providers desiring to provide Competitive Retail Electric Service to customers located within the Company's Service Territory must also register with the Company. The following information must be provided in order to register with the Company:

a. Proof of certification by the Commission, including any information provided to the Commission as part of the certification process. The registration process may be initiated upon receipt by the Company of an application for certification by the Commission. However, the Company will not complete the registration process until proof of certification by the Commission has been provided.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-25D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

- b. A completed copy of the Company's CRES Provider Registration Application, along with a non-refundable \$100.00 registration fee payable to the Company.
- c. After the first year, a \$100.00 annual registration fee payable to the Company.
- d. An appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company against CRES Provider defaults and a description of the CRES Provider's plan to procure sufficient electric energy and transmission services to meet the requirements of its firm service customers.
- e. The name of the CRES Provider, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).
- f. Details of the CRES Provider's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.
- g. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the CRES Provider committing it to adhere to the Company's Open Access Distribution Schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the CRES Provider and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- h. An Executed EDI Trading Partner Agreement and completion of EDI testing for applicable transaction sets necessary to commence service.
- The Company shall approve or disapprove the CRES Provider's registration within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of complete registration information from the CRES Provider. The thirty (30) days time period may be extended for up to thirty (30) days for good cause shown, or until such other time as is mutually agreed to by the CRES Provider and the Company.

The Company will notify the CRES Provider of incomplete registration information within ten (10) calendar days of receipt. The notice to the CRES Provider shall include a description of the missing or incomplete information.

Alternative dispute resolution under the provisions of Chapter 4901:1-26 of the Ohio Administrative Code shall be available to CRES Providers and the Company to address disputes and differences between the parties.

CRES PROVIDER CREDIT REQUIREMENTS

The Company will apply, on a non-discriminatory and consistent basis, reasonable financial standards to assess and examine a CRES Provider's creditworthiness. These standards will take into consideration the scope of operations of each CRES Provider and the level of risk to the Company. This determination will be aided by appropriate data concerning the CRES Provider, including load data or reasonable estimates thereof, where applicable.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-26D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

A CRES Provider shall satisfy its creditworthiness requirement and receive an unsecured credit limit by demonstrating that it has, and maintains, investment grade long-term bond ratings from any two of the following four rating agencies:

AGENCY	SENIOR SECURITIES RATING (BONDS)	
Standard & Poors	BBB- or higher	
Moody's Investors' Services	Baa3 or higher	
Fitch IBCA	BBB- or higher	
Duff & Phelps Credit Rating Company	BBB- or higher	

The CRES Provider will provide the Company with its or its parent's most recent independently-audited financial statements (if applicable), and its or its parent's most recent Form 10-K and Form 10-Q (if applicable).

The Company shall make reasonable alternative credit arrangements with a CRES Provider that is unable to meet the aforementioned criteria and with those CRES Providers whose credit requirements exceed their allowed unsecured credit limit. The CRES Provider may choose from any of the following credit arrangements in a format acceptable to the Company: a guarantee of payment; an irrevocable Letter of Credit; a Prepayment Account established with the Company; a Surety Bond, including the Company as a beneficiary; or other mutually agreeable security or arrangement. The alternate credit arrangements may be provided by a party other than the CRES Provider, including one or more ultimate customers. The fact that a guarantee of payment, irrevocable Letter of Credit, Prepayment Account, or Surety Bond is provided by a party other than the CRES Provider shall not be a factor in the determination of the reasonableness of any alternative credit arrangement, as long as such party and the related credit arrangements meet the Company's standard credit requirements. The amount of the security required must be and remain commensurate with the financial risks placed on the Company by that CRES Provider, including recognition of that CRES Provider's performance.

The Company will make available its credit requirements upon request. A CRES Provider may appeal the Company's determination of credit requirements to the Commission or seek Staff mediation as to any dispute.

11. CUSTOMER ENROLLMENT PROCESS

a. Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List

Upon request, the Company will electronically provide to any CRES Provider certified by the Commission the most recent Customer Information List. The CRES Provider will pay the Company \$150.00 per list provided.

The Company will offer the Customer Information List with updates available quarterly throughout the Market Development Period. Once the list has been updated, a CRES Provider may not use a Customer Information List from a prior quarter to contact customers, but CRES Providers shall not be required to purchase subsequent lists.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-27D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

The Company will provide customers the option to have all the customer's information tisted in the section below removed from the Customer Information List. At the same time, the Company will also provide customers with the option to have all information listed below reinstated on the Customer Information List, Customers will be notified of such options quarterly throughout the Market Development Period.

The following information will be provided on the Customer Information List for each customer who has not requested that all information be removed from this list:

Customer name Service address Service city Service state and zip code Mailing address Mailing city Mailing state and zip code Rate schedule under which service is rendered

Rider (if applicable)

Load profile reference category Meter type (if readily available)

Interval meter data indicator (if readily available)

Budget bill / PIPP indicator

Meter reading cycle

Most recent twelve (12) months of historical consumption data (actual energy usage and demand, if available)

The Company will provide the Customer Information List by either a compact disc or on a designated website. The information will be prepared and distributed in a uniform and useable format that allows for data sorting. Customers participating in the percentage of income payment plan (PIPP) program will be coordinated exclusively through the PIPP program administered by the Ohio Department of Development.

b. CRES Provider Requests for Customer Information

CRES Providers certified by the Commission may request historical interval meter data through a Direct Access Service Request (DASR) after receiving the appropriate customer authorization. The interval meter data will be transferred in a standardized electronic transaction. The CRES Provider will be responsible for the incremental costs incurred to prepare and send such data.

C. Direct Access Service Requests

Enrollment of a customer is done through a DASR, which may be submitted only by a CRES Provider.

DASRs will be effective at the end of the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date provided that the DASR is received by the Company at least twelve (12) calendar days before the next meter reading date.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-28D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

All DASRs will be submitted to the Company no more than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the scheduled meter reading date when the CRES Provider desires the switch to occur, unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties. The Company will process all valid DASRs and send the confirmation notice to the customer within two business days. Simultaneous with the sending of the confirmation notice to the customer, the Company will electronically advise the CRES Provider of acceptance. Notice of rejection of the DASR to the CRES Provider shall be sent within one business day, if possible, but in no event later than four (4) calendar days, and include the reasons for the rejection. The customer has seven (7) calendar days from the confirmation notice to cancel the contract without penalty. If the customer cancels the contract, the Company shall send a drop notice to the CRES Provider and the previous CRES Provider will continue to serve the customer under the terms and conditions in effect prior to submission of the new DASR.

DASRs will be processed on a "first in" priority basis based on the received date, and using contract date as the tie-breaker. Any subsequent DASRs received within the same billing cycle will be rejected and returned to the CRES Provider who submitted the DASR.

To receive service from a CRES Provider, a customer must have an active service account with the Company. After the service account is active, a CRES Provider may submit a DASR as described herein.

d. Government Aggregation Customer Information List

Upon request, the Company will provide to any governmental aggregator certified by the Commission a Government Aggregation Customer Information List. The Company will provide the Government Aggregation Customer Information List by compact disc. The information will be prepared and distributed in a uniform and useable format that allows for data sorting. The governmental aggregator will pay the Company \$500.00 per list provided.

The list will include information for all customers residing within the governmental aggregator's boundaries based upon the Company's records, including an identification of customers who are currently in contract with a CRES provider or in a special contract with the Company. The list will also include those customers that elect to have their information removed from the Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List. The Company cannot guarantee that the list will include all of the customers residing within the aggregator's boundaries, nor can the Company guarantee that all the customers shown on the list reside within the aggregator's boundaries. In addition to all information included on the Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List, the Government Agregation Customer Information List shall also include the customer's Service Delivery Identifier (SDI).

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-29D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

12. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

All confidential or proprietary information made available by one party to the other in connection with the registration of a CRES Provider with the Company and/or the subsequent provision and receipt of service under these Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service, including but not limited to load data, and information regarding the business processes of a party and the computer and communication systems owned or leased by a party, shall be used only for purposes of registration with the Company, receiving or providing service under these Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and/or providing Competitive Retail Electric Service to customers in the Company's service territory. Other than disclosures to representatives of the Company or the CRES Provider for the purposes of enabling that party to fulfill its obligations under these Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service or for the CRES Provider to provide Competitive Retail Electric Service to customers in the Company's service territory, a party may not disclose confidential or proprietary information without the prior authorization and/or consent of the other party.

The CRES Provider shall keep all customer-specific information supplied by the Company confidential unless the CRES Provider has the customer's written authorization to do otherwise.

LOSSES

Either the CRES Provider or the Transmission Provider may provide both transmission and distribution losses as required to serve customers at various delivery voltages. If a CRES Provider arranges to provide transmission losses under the provisions of the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff, then the CRES Provider must also arrange for the appropriate distribution losses. Customers served at transmission and subtransmission voltages require no additional losses other than the losses specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Customers served at primary distribution voltage require 1.9% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer. Customers served at secondary distribution voltage require 5.1% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer.

METER SERVICE PROVIDERS (MSPs)

MSPs desiring to provide service to customers in the Company's Service Territory must submit a written application to the Company in order to provide metering services for ownership, installation, inspection and auditing. Such application shall include the following:

- A \$500.00 initial registration fee payable to the Company and a \$100 annual registration fee thereafter.
- b. Proof of creditworthiness to the Company, including an appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company and used in the event of damages as a result of the MSP's actions.
- c. The name of the MSP, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).
- Details of the MSP's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-30D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

- e. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the MSP committing it to adhere to the Company's open access distribution schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the MSP and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- f. Proof of an electrical subcontractor's license issued by the Ohio Department of Commerce, including the name of the person or entity to which the license has been issued, license number and expiration date. Certification may require an employee to be a licensed electrician in the service area where work is performed.
- g. Description of the (a) applicant's electric meter installation, maintenance, repair and removal experience, (b) applicant's training and experience regarding electrical safety and (c) educational and training requirements in electrical work and safety that the MSP will require from its employees before they are permitted to install, maintain, repair or remove electric meters or metering devices.

The MSP must also agree to the following standards for metering services:

- a. The Company must approve the type of any and all metering equipment to be installed. Such metering and practices must conform with the Company's metering service guides and standards and must comply with the Meter Testing provision of the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service. A written agreement between the Company and the MSP shall specify those categories or types of meters for which the MSP is certified to install/remove or test/maintain.
- b. The MSP shall allow the Company to disconnect the MSP's meter, or promptly perform a disconnection as notified by the Company where a customer's service is subject to disconnection due to non-payment of distribution charges. The Company shall be permitted to audit the meter accuracy of MSP meters and to disconnect or remove a MSP's meter when necessary to maintain the safe and reliable delivery of electrical service. The MSP is responsible to acquire the right of ingress and egress from the customer to perform its functions. When necessary, the MSP must also seek written approval and secure from the customer any keys necessary to access locked premises.
- c. The MSP is responsible for detecting and immediately notifying the Company of hazardous conditions noted at the customer's electrical service and meter installation.
- d. The MSP is responsible for recording and notifying the Company of conditions detected on the customer's premises which present potential for injury.
- e. The MSP shall be responsible for conforming to Company standards for sealing and resealing meters as well as properly resetting and sealing demand measurement devices.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-31D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

15. METER DATA MANAGEMENT AGENTS (MDMAs)

MDMAs desiring to provide service to customers in the Company's Service Territory must submit a written application to the Company in order to provide any meter reading or data management services. Such application shall include the following:

- a. A \$100.00 annual registration fee payable to the Company.
- b. Proof of creditworthiness to the Company, including an appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company and used in the event of damages as a result of the MDMA's actions.
- c. The name of the MDMA, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).
- Details of the MDMA's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.
- e. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the MDMA committing it to adhere to the Company's Open Access Distribution Schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the MDMA and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- f. Description of the (a) applicant's experience in meter reading, data validation, editing and estimation, and other data management activities and (b) educational and training requirements that the MDMA will require from its employees before they are permitted to perform such meter reading, data validation, editing and estimating and other data management activities.

The MDMA must also agree to the following standards for meter data management services:

- a. All billing meters shall be read each month, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the MDMA and the Company.
- b. Meter data shall be read, validated, edited and transferred pursuant to Commission and Company approved standards. The Company and the MDMA must agree to common data formats for the exchange of validated data.
- c. The Company shall have reasonable access to the MDMA data server.
- d. The MDMA shall provide to the appropriate entities reasonable and timely access to meter data as required for billing, settlement, scheduling, forecasting and other functions.
- e. The MDMA shall retain the most recent twelve (12) months of data for any customer who elects the MDMA to perform meter reading and data management services. Such data must be retained for a minimum period of 36 months and must be released upon request to either the customer or an entity authorized by the customer.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-32D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

- f. Within five (5) business days after the installation of a meter, the MDMA must confirm with the Company that the meter and meter reading system are working properly and that the billing data is valid.
- g. No more than 10% of the individual meters read by the MDMA shall contain estimated data, with no single account being estimated more than two consecutive months. Estimated data must be based on historical data and load profile data as provided by the Company.
- h. The MDMA shall comply with the Company's time requirements for the posting of validated meter reading data on the MDMA server.
- i. The MDMA is responsible for acquiring the right of ingress and egress from the customer to perform its functions. When necessary, the MDMA must also seek written approval and secure from the customer any keys necessary to access locked premises.
- j. The MDMA is responsible for identifying suspected cases of the unauthorized use of energy and shall report such concerns to the customer's CRES Provider, Transmission Provider and the Company. The CRES Provider shall resolve such concerns and pursue the appropriate legal response and all necessary parties shall support this action. The customer's supplier of meter services (MSP or the Company) shall make the necessary meter corrections and/or repairs, and then notify the MDMA who shall correct the previous meter usage data and provide to the appropriate entities such data as required for billing, settlement, scheduling, forecasting and other functions. Any billing corrections shall be consistent with the provisions of the Company's Terms and Conditions of Service for Open Access Distribution Service.
- k. The MDMA is responsible for detecting and immediately notifying the Company of hazardous conditions noted at the customer's electrical service and meter installation.
- 1. The MDMA is responsible for recording and notifying the Company of conditions detected on the customer's premises which present potential for injury.
- m. The MDMA shall be responsible for conforming to Company standards for sealing and resealing meters as well as properly resetting and sealing demand measurement devices.

16. CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY A BILLING AGENT (BA)

BAs desiring to provide service to customers in the Company's Service Territory must submit a written application to the Company in order to provide consolidated billing-related services to customers. Such application shall include the following:

- A \$100.00 annual registration fee payable to the Company.
- Proof of creditworthiness to the Company, including an appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company and used in the event of damages as a result of the BA's actions.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-33D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

- c. The name of the BA, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).
- d. Details of the BA's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.
- e. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the BA committing it to adhere to the open access distribution schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the BA and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- f. Description of the (a) applicant's training and experience in billing collections, payment services and billing inquiries and (b) educational and training requirements for BA employees regarding such services.
- g. The Company and the BA must agree to common data formats for the exchange of billing data.

A written agreement between the Company and the BA shall specify the bill format regarding transmission- and distribution-related services. Regardless of such format, each customer's bill rendered by the BA shall show charges for generation, transmission, distribution and other services covered under the particular bill and also indicate the provider of each service.

The BA must agree to be subject to the same provisions as the Company, including requirements as specified in the Company's Open Access Distribution Schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution, Ohio Revised Code, and all other legislative and regulatory mandates regarding billing. The BA is responsible for electronically transmitting funds received from the customer for charges from Company for distribution service, together with the associated customer account data, on the same day as receiving said funds. The BA assumes responsibility for outstanding distribution service charges from the Company and is responsible for providing payment in full of all charges for distribution service from the Company by the due date in accordance with terms of the applicable open access distribution schedule. Failure of the BA to transmit such funds by the due date will result in late charges applied to the affected customer's account according to the provisions of the customer's open access distribution schedule. If the BA fails to provide payment to the Company by the due date of the next bill, the Company will thereafter directly bill the customer for distribution service from the Company. In addition, the financial instrument will be forfeited to the extent necessary to cover bills due and payable to the Company.

The Company will provide a credit to BAs that are CRES Providers and that issue consolidated bills to their customers that include the Company's distribution charges. Such credit shall be equal to \$1.00 for each consolidated bill issued by the BA during the first one year period that the Company can accommodate such consolidated billing.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-34D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY THE COMPANY

Upon request, the Company will offer Company-issued consolidated bills to customers receiving service from a CRES Provider upon execution of an appropriate agreement between the CRES Provider and the Company. Company-issued consolidated billing will include budget billing as an option. The CRES Provider will be responsible for the Company's incremental cost of issuing consolidated bills. The CRES Provider must electronically provide all information in a bill-ready format.

At the Company's discretion, any customer receiving Company consolidated billing with a CRES Provider billing arrearage of more than 60 days may be switched back to the Company's Standard Offer Service and will not be permitted to select a new CRES Provider until the arrearage is paid.

If the customer's CRES Provider defaults, the Company reserves the right to retain payments collected from the customer and to apply such payments to the Company's charges.

18. METERING AND LOAD PROFILING

All customers with maximum monthly billing demands of 200 KW or greater for the most recent twelve (12) months shall be interval metered. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may request an interval meter for customers with maximum monthly billing demands less than 200 kW.

The cost of any interval metering facilities installed by the Company to comply with this requirement or as a result of such request shall be paid by the customer. The customer shall make a one-time payment for the metering facilities at the time of installation of the required facilities, or, at the customer's option, up to 24 consecutive equal monthly payments reflecting an annual interest charge as determined by the Company, but not to exceed the cost of the Company's most recent issue of long-term debt. If the customer elects the installment payment option, the Company shall require an initial payment equal to 25% of the total cost of the metering facilities.

In addition, the customer shall pay a net charge to cover the incremental cost of operation and maintenance and meter data management associated with such interval metering as follows. Charges are for service performed on a Company installed standard interval meter.

Service Performed During Normal Business Hours	Charge (\$)
Connect phone line to meter at a time other than the initial interval meter	
installation	54.00
Perform manual meter reading	39.00
Check phone line and perform manual meter reading due to communication loss	44.00
Repair/replace surge protector	65.00
Repair/replace interval board	146.00
Repair/replace modem board	236.00
Repair/replace interval and modem boards	304.00

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-35D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may select a meter from the Company's approved equipment list. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may communicate with the meter for the purpose of obtaining usage data, subject to the Company's communication protocol. The customer is responsible for providing the telephone line for purposes of reading the meter.

A customer that is required to have interval metering must approve a work order for interval meter installation before a CRES Provider may serve such customer. During the period between when the customer has requested an interval meter and the time that the Company is able to install such a meter, a Company load profile will be used for settlement purposes and consumption meter readings will be used for billing.

All load profiling shall be performed by the Company. Sample data and customer specific interval metering, when available, will be used in the development of the total load profile for which a CRES Provider is responsible for providing generation and possibly arranging transmission services. Such data shall be provided to the BA or other entities as required for monthly billing.

DEPOSITS

Security for the payment of bills for service from a CRES Provider will be governed, as specified in Chapter 4901:1-21-07 of the Ohio Administrative Code, which is herein incorporated by reference as it is from time to time amended.

20. PAYMENTS

Partial payment from a customer shall be applied to the various portions of the customer's total bill in the following order: (a) past due distribution, Standard Offer Service generation and transmission charges, (b) past due CRES Provider charges, (c) current CRES Provider charges, (d) current distribution, Standard Offer Service generation and transmission charges, and (e) other past due and current non-regulated charges.

21. COMPANY'S LIABILITY

In addition to the Company's liability as set forth in the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, the following shall apply. The Company shall use reasonable diligence in delivering regular and uninterrupted supply of energy to the customer, but does not guarantee continuous, regular and uninterrupted service. The Company may, without liability, interrupt or limit the supply of service for the purpose of making repairs, changes, or improvements in any part of its system for the general good of the service or the safety of the public or for the purpose of preventing or limiting any actual or threatened instability or disturbance of the system. The Company is also not liable for any damages due to accident, strike, storm, riot, fire, flood, legal process, state or municipal interference, or any other cause beyond the Company's control. The Company shall not be liable for damages in case such service should be interrupted or fail by reason of failure of the customer's CRES Provider to provide appropriate energy to the Company for delivery to the customer. The Company shall not be liable for any damages, financial or otherwise, to any of the customer's CSPs resulting from an interruption of service.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-36D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009 Effective: December 9, 2009

Issued by Joseph Hamrock, President AEP Ohio

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Meters shall be provided and maintained by the Company unless the customer selects a MSP to provide metering services. Unless otherwise specified, such meters shall be and remain the property of the Company.

22. COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDER'S LIABILITY

In the event of loss or injury to the Company's property through misuse by, or negligence of, the CRES Provider, MSP, MDMA or BA, or the CSP's agents and employees, the CSP shall be obligated and shall pay to the Company the full cost of repairing or replacing such property.

Unless authorized by the Company to do so, a CSP and its agents and employees shall not tamper with, interfere with or break the seals of meters or other equipment of the Company installed on the customer's premises, and, under any circumstances, the CSP assumes all liability for the consequences thereof. The CSP agrees that no one, except agents and employees of the Company, shall be allowed to make any internal or external adjustments to any meter or other piece of apparatus which belongs to the Company.

23. METER ACCURACY AND TESTS

A MSP's meter performance levels, testing methods and test schedules must comply with all standards specified by the Company. Such details shall be specified in the agreement between the Company and the MSP.

When metering is provided by an MSP, the Company may, at its discretion, direct meter-related inquiries from the customer to the MSP for response, or the Company may send notification to the MSP to perform a test of the accuracy of its meter. At the MSP's request, or should the MSP fail to perform a customer-requested test in a timely manner, the Company, at its discretion, may agree to test the accuracy of a meter supplied by the MSP. Regardless of the test results, the MSP shall pay to the Company a flat amount equal to the Company's current average cost of performing such meter tests. Such test will be conducted using a properly calibrated meter standard.

The Company, at its discretion, may perform a test of the accuracy of a meter supplied by the MSP at any time. If the meter fails to perform at the accuracy standards set forth in the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, the MSP will be responsible to remedy the accuracy of the meter, and to pay to the Company a flat amount equal to the Company's current average cost of performing such meter tests.

24. BILLING CORRECTIONS

Any correction of bills due to a meter registration error must be coordinated with the other entities utilizing the billing data which is in error. Any entity which detects an error in billing data shall promptly notify the MDMA or the Company if it is performing the function of the MDMA. The MDMA shall then correct any necessary data and provide to the appropriate entities such data as required for billing, settlement, scheduling, forecasting and other functions. Any billing corrections shall be consistent with the provisions of the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-37D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

25. TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF A CRES PROVIDER

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Tariff or any agreement between the Company and the CRES Provider, in the event of a default by the CRES Provider, the Company shall serve written notice of such default in reasonable detail and with a proposed remedy to the CRES Provider and the Commission. On or after the date the default notice has been served, the Company may file with the Commission a written request for authorization to terminate or suspend the service agreement between the Company and the CRES Provider. Except for default due to non-delivery, if the Commission does not act within ten (10) business days upon receipt of the request, the Company's request to terminate or suspend shall be deemed authorized on the eleventh (11th) business days upon receipt of the request, the Company's request to terminate or suspend shall be deemed authorized on the sixth (6th) business day. Termination or suspension shall require authorization from the Commission.

The Company shall send notices pursuant to this section by e-mail, fax, overnight mail, or hand delivery to the Commission and Staff at the Commission's offices. The Company shall notify all Commissioners, the Chief of Staff, the Director of the Consumer Services Department, the Director of the Utilities Department, the Director of the Legal Department, and the Chief of the Attorney General's Public Utilities Section. The Company shall send the notice to the address and fax number provided by the CRES Provider in its service agreement with the Company.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

CODE OF CONDUCT

- 1. The Company shall not release any proprietary customer information (e.g., individual customer load profiles or billing histories) to an affiliate, or otherwise, without the prior authorization of the customer, except as required by a regulatory agency or court of law.
- 2. The Company shall make customer lists, which include name, address and telephone number, available on a nondiscriminatory basis to all nonaffiliated and affiliated certified retail electric competitors transacting business in its service territory, unless otherwise directed by the customer. This provision does not apply to customer-specific information, obtained with proper authorization, necessary to fulfill the terms of a contract, or information relating to the provision of general and administrative support services.
- 3. Employees of the Company's affiliates shall not have access to any information about the Company's transmission or distribution systems (e.g., system operations, capability, price, curtailments, and ancillary services), that is not contemporaneously and in the same form and manner available to a nonaffiliated competitor of retail electric service.
- 4. The Company shall treat as confidential all information obtained from a competitive supplier of retail electric service, both affiliated and nonaffiliated, and shall not release such information unless a competitive supplier provides authorization to do so.
- 5. The Company shall not tie (nor allow an affiliate to tie) or otherwise condition the provision of the Company's regulated services, discounts, rebates, fee waivers, or any other waivers of the Company's ordinary terms and conditions of service, including but not limited to tariff provisions, to the taking of any goods and/or services from the Company's affiliates.
- 6. The Company shall not engage in joint advertising or marketing of any kind with its affiliates or directly promote or market any product or service offered by any affiliate. The Company shall also not give the appearance that the Company speaks on behalf of its affiliates or that the customer will receive preferential treatment as a consequence of conducting business with the affiliates.
- 7. The Company, upon request from a customer, shall provide a complete list of all suppliers operating on the system, but shall not endorse any suppliers nor indicate that any supplier will receive preference because of an affiliate relationship.
- 8. The Company shall not trade upon, promote or advertise its affiliate relationship nor allow the Company name or logo to be used by the affiliate in any material circulated by the affiliate, unless it discloses in plain legible or audible language, on the first page or at the first point where the utility name or logo is mentioned, that:
 - (a) The affiliate is not the same company as the Company;
 - (b) The affiliate is not regulated by the Commission; and
 - (c) The customer does not have to buy the affiliate's products in order to continue to receive quality, regulated service from the Company.

The application of the name/logo disclaimer is limited to the use of the name or logo in Ohio.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-39D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

CODE OF CONDUCT

- 9. The Company shall provide comparable access to products and services related to tariffed products and services and specifically comply with the following:
 - (a) The Company shall be prohibited from unduly discriminating in the offering of its products and/or services;
 - (b) The Company shall apply all tariff provisions in the same manner to the same or similarly situated entities, regardless of any affiliation or nonaffiliation;
 - (c) The Company shall not, through a tariff provision, a contract, or otherwise, give its affiliates preference over nonaffiliated competitors of retail electric service or their customers in matters relating to any product and/or service;
 - (d) The Company shall strictly follow all tariff provisions;
 - (e) Except to the extent allowed by state law, the Company shall not be permitted to provide discounts, rebates, or fee waivers for any state regulated monopoly service; and
 - (f) Violations of the provisions of this rule shall be enforced and subject to the disciplinary actions described in divisions (C) and (D) of Section 4928.18, Ohio Revised Code.
- 10. Notwithstanding any provision of this Code of Conduct, in a declared emergency situation, the Company may take actions necessary to ensure public safety and system reliability. The Company shall maintain a log of all such actions that do not comply with this Code of Conduct, which log shall be review by the Commission.
- 11. The Company shall establish a complaint procedure for the issues concerning compliance with this rule. All complaints, whether written or verbal, shall be referred to the general counsel of the Company or their designee. The legal counsel shall orally acknowledge the complaint within five business days of its receipt. The legal counsel shall prepare a written statement of the complaint that shall contain the name of the complainant and a detailed factual report of the complaint, including all relevant dates, companies involved, employees involved, and the specific claim. The legal counsel shall communicate the results of the preliminary investigation to the complainant in writing within thirty (30) days after the complaint was received, including a description of any course of action that was taken. The legal counsel shall keep a file in the Cost Allocation Manual, of all such complaint statements for a period of not less than three (3) years. This complaint procedure shall not in any way limit the rights if a party to file a complaint with the Commission.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

OHIO POWER COMPANY COMPLIANCE TARIFF

STANDARD SERVICE

Filed pursuant to Order in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Schedule		Sheet No(s)	Effective Date
	Table of Contents	1-1 thru 1-2	December 9, 2009
	List of Communities Served	2-1 thru 2-7	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Terms and Conditions of Service	3-1 thru 3-19	December 9, 2009
	Minimum Requirements for Distribution System Interconnection	6-1 thru 6-5	Cycle 1 April 2009
RS	Residential Service	10-1 thru 10-3	Cycle 1 April 2009
RS-ES	Residential Energy Storage	11-1 thru 11-3	Cycle 1 April 2009
RS-TOD	Residential Time-of-Day	12-1 thru 12-2	Cycle 1 April 2009
RDMS	Residential Demand Metered Service	13-1 thru 13-3	Cycle 1 April 2009
GS-1	General Service – Non-Demand Metered	20-1 thru 20-3	Cycle 1 April 2009
GS-2	General Service - Low Load Factor	21-1 thru 21-6	Cycle 1 April 2009
GS-TOD	General Service – Time-of-Day	22-1 thru 22-2	Cycle 1 April 2009
GS-3	General Service – Medium/High Load Factor	23-1 thru 23-5	Cycle 1 April 2009
GS-4	General Service – Large	24-1 thru 24-4	Cycle 1 April 2009
IRP-D	Interruptible Power ~ Discretionary	25-1 thru 25-10	Cycle 1 April 2009
COGEN/SPP	Cogeneration and/or Small Power Production	26-1 thru 26-3	Cycle 1 April 2009
SBS	Standby Service	27-1 thru 27-9	Cycle 1 April 2009
NEMS	Net Energy Metering Service	28-1 thru 28-2	Cycle 1 April 2009
OL	Outdoor Lighting	40-1 thru 40-4	Cycle 1 April 2009
SL	Street Lighting	41-1 thru 41-6	Cycle 1 April 2009
EHG	Electric Heating General	42-1 thru 42-2	Cycle 1 April 2009

(Continued on Sheet No. 1-2)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

1. CONTENTS

Paragraph	Section	Sheet No.
2.	Application for Service	3-1
16.	Billing Corrections	3-13
5.	Change of Address by Customer	3-4
10.	Company's Liability	3-7
11.	Customer's Liability	3-8
18.	Denial or Discontinuance of Service	3-14
3.	Deposits	3-2
21.	Extension of Local Facilities	3-16
6.	Inspection	3-4
19.	Interval Metering Installations	3-15
13.	Location and Maintenance of Company's Equipment	3-11
15.	Meter Registration and Testing	3-12
8.	Nominal Voltage Levels	3-6
4.	Payments	3-2
20.	Pre-Enrollment Customer Information	3-16
17.	Residential Service	3-13
7.	Service Connection	3-5
12.	Temporary Service	3-10
14.	Use of Energy by Customer	3-11
9.	Work Performed on Company's Facilities at Customer's Request	3-6

APPLICATION FOR SERVICE

These Terms and Conditions of Service apply to service under the Company's schedules which provide for generation, transmission and distribution service. Customers requesting only distribution service from the Company, irrespective of the voltage level at which service is taken, as provided for in Section 4928.40(E), Ohio Revised Code, shall be served under the Company's open access distribution schedules and the Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service shall apply.

A copy of these Terms and Conditions of Service and the schedules applicable to the customer's class of business will be furnished upon request and the customer shall elect upon which applicable schedule the customer desires to be served.

Before the Company shall be required to furnish service, the Company may request that a customer submit written specifications of electrical apparatus to be operated by service, and to furnish the Company a detailed sketch giving the location of the customer's facilities. Such requests will be limited to specific instances where such information significantly assists the Company in designing and sizing its local facilities.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-2)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009

P.U.C.O. NO. 19

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Year-round residential and not-for-profit General Service Schedule customers shall have the option of paying bills under the Company's equal payment plan (Budget Plan), whereby the total service for the succeeding 12-month period is estimated in advance, and bills are rendered monthly on the basis of one-twelfth of the 12-month estimate. The Company may at any time during the 12-month period adjust the estimate so made, and the bills rendered in accordance with such estimate, to conform more nearly with the actual use of service being experienced. The normal equal payment period will be 12 months, commencing in any month selected by the Company, but in those cases where billing is commenced during a month which leaves less than 12 months until the beginning of the next normal equal payment period to which the customer is assigned, payments shall be calculated on the basis of the months in such period.

In case the actual service used during any equal payment period exceeds the bills as rendered on the equal payment plan, the amount of such excess shall be paid on or before the due date of the bill covering the last month of the equal payment period in which such excess appears, or such excess may be added to the estimated use of the next normal equal payment period of 12 months, and shall be payable in equal payments over such period, except that if the customer discontinues service with the Company under the equal payment plan, any such excess not yet paid shall become payable immediately. In case the actual service used during the equal payment period is less than the amount paid under the equal payment plan during such period, the amount of such overpayment shall, at the option of the Company, either be refunded to the customer or credited on the customer's last bill for the period.

If a customer fails to pay bills as rendered on the equal payment plan, the Company shall have the right to withdraw the plan with respect to such customer and to restore the customer to billing as provided for in the applicable schedules, in addition to any other rights which the Company may have under such schedules and terms and conditions of service in case of arrearage in payment of bills.

All bills from the Company are due and payable by mail, checkless payment plan, electronic payment plan or at an authorized payment agent of the Company within the time limits specified in the schedule. For the purpose of this Section, the United States Postal Service is not an authorized payment agent, and payments received through the Postal Service are considered paid when received at the Company's business offices. Failure to receive bill will not entitle customer to any discount or to the remission of any charge for nonpayment within the time specified. For purposes of this Section, the word "month" as used herein and in the schedules is hereby defined to be the elapsed time between two successive meter readings approximately 30 days apart.

A customer shall be charged \$10.00 for any dishonored check received in payment for a bill rendered by the Company, unless the customer shows that the bank was in error.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-4)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Issued by Joseph Hamrock, President AEP Ohio

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

5. CHANGE OF ADDRESS BY CUSTOMER

It is the responsibility of an existing customer to notify the Company when service is to be discontinued, and to provide a mailing address for the final bill.

When the Company receives notice from an existing customer that the service is to be discontinued, or from a prospective customer that an existing service is to be transferred into the prospective customer's name, the Company will, within three regular Company working days, determine the meter reading for the final bill to the existing customer. The existing customer will be responsible for all service supplied to the premises until such meter reading and discontinuance or transfer is made. Transfer of service to a qualified prospective customer will not be delayed or denied because of nonpayment of the final bill by the former customer, unless the former customer continues to be a consumer of electric service at that premise.

inspection

It is to the interest of the customer to properly install and maintain the customer's wiring and electrical equipment and the customer shall at all times be responsible for the character and condition thereof. It is the customer's responsibility to assure that all inside wiring is grounded and is otherwise in accordance with the requirements of the National Electric Code. The Company makes no inspection thereof and in no event shall be responsible therefor.

Where a customer's premises are located in a municipality or other governmental subdivision where inspection laws or ordinances are in effect, the Company may withhold furnishing service to new installations until it has received evidence that the inspection laws or ordinances have been complied with. In addition, if such municipality or other governmental subdivision shall determine that such inspection laws or ordinances are no longer being complied with in respect to an existing installation, the Company may suspend the furnishing of service thereto until it has received evidence of compliance with such laws or ordinances. The Company may disconnect electric service to a premise where unsafe conditions exist.

Where the customer's premises are located outside of an area where inspection service is in effect, the Company may require the delivery by the customer to the Company of an agreement duly signed by the owner and tenant of the premises authorizing the connection to the wiring system of the customer and assuming responsibility therefor.

No responsibility shall attach to the Company because of any waiver of these requirements.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-5)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

SERVICE CONNECTION

The Company will, when requested to furnish service, designate the location of its service connection. The customer's wiring must, except for those cases listed below, be brought out of the building in an approved manner from the main service disconnect to outside the building wall nearest the Company's service wires so as to be readily accessible thereto. The point of service drop attachment shall be as high as the construction of the building will permit, but not more than twenty-five (25) feet nor less than twelve (12) feet from the ground (see National Electric Code for vertical clearance requirements of service drop conductors) and shall be located at a point convenient to the Company's lines for making connections thereto, and each of the service wires shall extend at least eighteen (18) inches from the weatherhead on the end of the conduit or cable for making service connections. Service entrance equipment shall be properly grounded and shall be installed so that the disconnecting means is readily accessible. Where customers install service entrance facilities which have capacity and layout specified by the Company and/or install and use certain utilization equipment specified by the Company, the Company may provide or offer to own certain facilities on the customer's side of the point where the service wires attach to the building.

In areas served by an overhead distribution system, an overhead service shall be provided by the Company from the Company's distribution system extending one span (approximately 100 feet) toward the customer's facilities. When a customer desires that energy be delivered at a point or in a manner other than that designated by the Company, the customer shall pay the additional cost of same. Rights-of-way or easements necessary for the installation of said service (including private railway wire crossings permits) shall be provided by the customer.

A nonresidential customer desiring an underground service shall, at the customer's expense, install and maintain the necessary service wires, duct work, manholes, vaults and connection boxes in an approved manner from the main entrance switch in the building to a service point designated by the Company, from which connection is to be made. Such underground service will be designed and installed as a continuous run of conductors which shall conform to Company specifications.

Conduit and wires and any equipment, installation and appurtenances furnished, installed and maintained by the customer must conform to the National Electrical Code, as well as applicable governmental requirements.

The Company shall not be required to make any inspection of the wiring, safety switch or other equipment, installation or appurtenances installed and owned by the customer. Any inspection thereof which the Company may make shall be voluntary on its part and for its benefit only, and shall not in any way relieve the customer of any obligations in that respect.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-6)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

NOMINAL VOLTAGE LEVELS

The Company has established the following nominal service voltages of which at least one of the following characteristics shall be made available to a customer, the particular voltage and service characteristics to be at the option of the Company:

Secondary Distribution System - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 120, 120/208, 120/240, or 240/480 volts, single phase; and 120/208, 120/240, 240, 240/480, 277/480 and 480 volts, 3 phase.

Primary Distribution System - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 12,470, and 34,500 volts, 3 phase.

Subtransmission - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 23,000, 34,500 and 69,000 volts.

Transmission - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 138,000 volts.

The Company shall design and operate its system so that under normal operating conditions the voltage delivered at the customer's service entrance, for the voltages listed above, is maintained within the range of plus or minus 5% of the nominal voltage. Wherever voltages shall be known to exist outside of such range, the Company will take steps to promptly initiate corrective action to restore the voltage level to within such range.

WORK PERFORMED ON COMPANY'S FACILITIES AT CUSTOMER'S REQUEST

Whenever, at the request of a customer and solely to suit the convenience of the customer, work is performed on the Company's facilities or the Company's facilities are relocated, the customer shall pay to the Company, in advance, the estimated total cost of such work. This cost shall be itemized by major categories and shall include the Company's standard overheads and be credited with the net value of any salvageable material. The actual costs for the worked performed will be determined after its completion and the appropriate additional charge or refund will be made to the customer.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-7)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

10. COMPANY'S LIABILITY

The Company will use reasonable diligence in furnishing a regular and uninterrupted supply of energy but does not guarantee uninterrupted service. The Company shall not be liable for damages in case such supply should be interrupted or fail by reason of an act of God, the public enemy, accidents, labor disputes, orders or acts of civil or military authority, breakdowns or injury to the machinery, transmission lines, distribution lines or other facilities of the Company, extraordinary repairs, or any act of the Company, including the interruption of service to any customer, taken to prevent or limit the extent or duration of interruption, instability or disturbance on the electric system of the Company or any electric system interconnected, directly or indirectly, with the Company's system, whenever such act is necessary or indicated in the sole judgment of the Company.

Unless otherwise provided in a contract between the Company and customer, the point at which service is delivered by the Company to the customer, to be known as "delivery point", shall be the point at which the customer's facilities are connected to the Company's facilities. The Company shall not be liable for any loss, injury, or damage resulting from the customer's use of the customer's equipment or occasioned by the energy furnished by the Company beyond the delivery point.

The customer shall provide and maintain suitable protective devices on the customer's equipment to prevent any loss, injury, or damage that might result from single phasing conditions or any other fluctuation or irregularity in the supply of energy. The Company shall not be liable for any loss, injury, or damage resulting from a single phasing condition or any other fluctuation or irregularity in the supply of energy which could have been prevented by the use of such protective devices.

Except as otherwise provided in this Section, the Company shall be liable to the customer for damage directly resulting from interruptions, irregularities, delays, or failures of electric service, caused by the negligence of the Company or its employees or agents, but any such liability shall not exceed the cost of repairing or replacing equipment, appliances, and perishable food stored in a customer's residence damaged as a direct result of such negligence. The customer must notify the Company of any claim based on such negligence within thirty days after the interruption, irregularity, delay or failure begins. The Company shall not be liable for consequential damages of any kind. This limitation shall not relieve the Company from liability which might otherwise be imposed by law with respect to any claims for personal injuries to the customer.

The Company will provide and maintain the necessary line or service connections, transformers (when same are required by conditions of contract between the parties thereto), meters and other apparatus which may be required for the proper measurement of and protection to its service. All such apparatus shall be and remain the property of the Company and the Company shall be granted ready access to the same, except to read inside meters. Such access to inside meters shall be granted upon reasonable request to residential customers during regular business hours.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-8)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Approval of the above schedule language by the Commission does not constitute a determination by the Commission that the limitation of liability imposed by the Company should be upheld in a court of law. Approval by the Commission merely recognizes that since it is a court's responsibility to adjudicate negligence and consequent damage claims, it is also the court's responsibility to determine the validity of the exculpatory clause.

11. CUSTOMER'S LIABILITY

In the event the customer is unable to receive electric energy in the full amount contemplated by the customer's regular service arrangements for a period in excess of fifteen full days as a result of fire, explosion, flood, accident, breakdown or acts of God or the public enemy, said customer shall not be liable to the Company for minimum demand or billing charges for which the customer normally would be liable pursuant to the schedule and/or contract during the period of service decrease of electricity usage, provided:

- A. The customer notifies the Company in writing of the customer's inability to receive service as a result of one or more of the above specified event(s); and
- B. Said notice includes (in addition to any other pertinent information):
 - (1) Extent (or magnitude) of the service decrease
 - (2) Date of the event
 - (3) Cause of the event
 - (4) Probable duration of the service decrease; and
- C. The customer is prompt and diligent in removing the cause of the service decrease; and
- D. The customer submits a report to the Company at least every thirty days following the event explaining the customer's progress toward removing cause of the service decrease; and
- E. The customer pays, pursuant to the customer's schedule and/or contract, for all service rendered prior to the service decrease.

In no event however shall this provision affect minimum demand or billing charges in any billing period to the date on which the Company receives the customer notice required above unless that notice is received within fifteen days of the above specified events.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-9)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

During the period that the terms of this provision shall be in effect, the customer shall pay for all service received, the charges for such service being determined pursuant to the schedule under which customer had been served prior to the event except for the minimum demand or billing charges which were waived as a consequence of this provision. Under no circumstance shall the waiver of the minimum demand or billing charges extend beyond the time the cause of the service decrease has been removed. On the date that the cause of the service decreases has been removed, billing shall resume pursuant to the customer's schedule and/or contract.

Any contract, which has been affected by the application of this provision, shall have its term extended for a period of time equal in length to the duration of service decrease.

If the event causing the service decrease is of such severity that the customer decides not to continue in business at the affected location, and so notifies the Company in writing, the above provision will not be applied. Under such circumstances the customer will pay to the Company (1) a sum equal to the value of the Company's estimated original plant in service including the cost of the transmission lines and other equipment erected or reserved specifically for that customer's use, less accumulated depreciation and less the net salvage value of that equipment, or (2) any remaining demand or minimum bill charges due under the contract or any extension thereof resulting from application of this provision.

In the event of loss or injury to the property of the Company through misuse by, or the negligence of, the customer or the employees of same, the cost of the necessary repairs or replacement thereof shall be paid to the Company by the customer.

Customers will be responsible for tampering with, interfering with, or breaking of seals of meters, or other equipment of the Company installed on the customer's premises. The customer hereby agrees that no one except the employees of the Company shall be allowed to make any internal or external adjustments of any meter or any other piece of apparatus which shall be the property of the Company.

At the request of any customer served on a schedule containing a separate demand charge, the Company shall provide a demand signal to the customer. The customer shall pay to the Company the cost for providing the signal. The Company shall not be liable for a loss of signal, and in such event the customer shall pay for the demand and energy as actually metered by the Company.

The Company shall have the right during regular working hours and in emergencies to enter the premises of the customer for the purpose of installing, reading, removing, testing, replacing, or otherwise disposing of its apparatus and property, and the right of entire removal of the Company's property in the event of the termination of the contract for any cause. The customer will keep the area where the Company's apparatus and property are located free from obstruction, danger and/or safety hazards. The Company's agent will, upon request, show credentials and state the reasons for requiring access.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-10)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

12. TEMPORARY SERVICE

The Company will supply temporary service when it has available unsold capacity in its lines, transformers and generating equipment. Customers who have seasonal operations at permanent locations, or who have other sources of energy supply and desire service for standby or breakdown purposes, must contract for permanent service under a schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will be subject to the terms of that schedule including the minimum bill and term of contract provisions.

The customer will purchase temporary service under any schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will, in addition, pay to the Company, in advance, the Company's estimated total cost of installing and removing its facilities necessary for the temporary service. The total cost will include all material, labor and overheads, with appropriate credits being given for salvageable material and for facilities to be used in subsequent permanent service. Charges for the following categories of temporary service are fixed as follows:

·	Distribution
Service requiring only reading-in and reading-out an existing meter	\$23.50
Single-phase 120/140 volt service from permanent source, up to 100 Ampere	
Capacity	\$204.00

The Company shall not be required to construct general distribution lines underground unless the cost of such special construction for general distribution lines and/or the cost of any change of existing overhead general distribution lines to underground which is required or specified by a municipality or other public authority (to the extent that such cost exceeds the cost of construction of the Company's standard facilities) shall be paid for by that municipality or public authority. The "cost of any change" as used herein, shall be the cost to the Company of such change. The "cost of special construction" as used herein, shall be the actual cost to the Company in excess of the cost of standard construction. When a charge is to be based on the excess cost, the Company and municipality or other public authority shall negotiate the amount thereof.

Temporary service supplied for a period less than one (1) full month will be billed on the basis of a full month's schedule billing, including the minimum charge if applicable.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-11)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

13. LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE OF COMPANY'S EQUIPMENT

As required to provide electric service to a customer, the Company shall have the right to construct and maintain its poles, lines, circuits and other necessary facilities on the customer's property, and to place its transformers and other apparatus on the property or within the buildings of the customer, at a point or points mutually acceptable to the Company and the customer for such purpose. The customer shall provide suitable space and access to same, for the installation and maintenance of necessary measuring instruments and other facilities, so that they may be a protected from injury by the elements or through the negligence or deliberate acts of the customer or of any employee of the same, or any other party.

USE OF ENERGY BY CUSTOMER

The schedules for electric energy given herein are classified by the character of use of such energy and are not available for service except as provided therein.

It shall be understood that upon the expiration of a contract the customer may elect to renew the contract upon the same or another schedule published by the Company and applicable to the customer's requirements, except that in no case shall the Company be required to maintain transmission, switching or transformation equipment (either for voltage or form of current change) different from or in addition to that generally furnished to other customers receiving electrical supply under the terms of the schedule elected by the customer.

A customer may not change from one schedule to another during the term of contract except with the consent of the Company.

The service connections, transformers, meters and appliances supplied by the Company for each customer have a definite capacity and no additions to the equipment, or load connected thereto, will be allowed except by consent of the Company.

The customer shall install only motors, apparatus, or appliances which are suitable for operation with the character of the service supplied by the Company, and which shall not be detrimental to same, and the electric power must not be used in such a manner as to cause unprovided for voltage fluctuations or disturbances in the Company's transmission or distribution system. The Company shall be the sole judge as to the suitability of apparatus or appliances, and also as to whether the operation of such apparatus or appliances is or will be detrimental to its general service.

No attachment of any kind whatsoever may be made to the Company's lines, poles, crossarms, structures, or other facilities without the express written consent of the Company.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-12)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

All apparatus used by the customer shall be of such type as to secure the highest practical commercial efficiency, power factor and the proper balancing of phases. Motors which are frequently started or motors arranged for automatic control, must be of a type to give maximum starting torque with minimum current flow, and must be of a type, and equipped with controlling devices, approved by the Company. The customer agrees to promptly notify the Company prior to any significant increase or decrease in the customer's connected load, which could impact the capacity requirements of the Company's local facilities.

The operation of certain electrical equipment can result in disturbances (e.g., voltage fluctuations, harmonics, etc.) on the Company's transmission and distribution systems which can adversely impact the operation of equipment for other customers. Nonresidential customers are expected to abide by industry standards, such as those contained in ANSI/IEEE 519 or the IEEE/GE voltage flicker criteria, when operating such equipment. In accordance with the Electric Service and Safety Standards, Chapter 4901:1-10-15 (D) of the Ohio Administrative Code, the Company may refuse or disconnect service to nonresidential customers for using electricity or equipment which adversely affects distribution service to other customers. Copies of the applicable criteria will be provided upon request.

The Company will not supply service to customers who have other sources of energy supply except under schedules which specifically provide for same. The term "other sources of energy supply" as used in these Terms and Conditions of Service or in any of the Company's schedules shall mean "other sources of electric energy supply" except where the Company provides service as standby or partial standby for a source of energy other than electric energy.

The customer shall not be permitted to operate the customer's own generating equipment in parallel with the Company's service except on written permission of the Company.

Resale of energy will be permitted only by legitimate electric public utilities subject to the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio and only by written consent of the Company. In addition, resale of energy will be permitted for electric service and related billing as they apply to the resale or redistribution of electrical service from a landlord to a tenant where the landlord is not operating as a public utility, and the landlord owns the property upon which such resale or redistribution takes place.

15. METER REGISTRATION AND TESTING

Any kilowatt-hour meter registering between 2% fast and 2% slow will be considered to be registering correctly. Any integrating block interval demand meter or thermal demand meter registering between 4% high and 4% low will be considered to be registering correctly.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-13)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

The Company will, upon request of the customer, test any meter suspected of improper registration. For each subsequent test conducted within thirty-six months of the last previous test, if the meter is found to be registering correctly, the customer shall pay to the Company a \$59 fee for a single phase meter test and a \$73 fee for a three phase meter test. The customer shall be told the amount of such charge when the customer requests the meter test within such 36-month period. Such test, witnessed by the customer if so desired, will be conducted using a properly calibrated meter standard. Any meter found registering correctly will be resealed and the date and results of the test entered on the Company's records.

The Company will replace at its expense any meter registering incorrectly and make billing corrections in accordance with the following Section.

BILLING CORRECTIONS

If the amount of energy consumed is not properly registered by a meter for any reason, or is not properly charged to the customer's account, the Company will, for the period of time that incorrect billings can be established, adjust the meter readings and billings to reflect all available information concerning the actual use by the customer. Any resulting overpayment will be paid or credited to the customer. Except as provided below, any underpayment, not to exceed the length of time of the underbilling, except at the Company's discretion, will be billed to the customer. The Company will, if the customer requests, attempt to arrange a reasonable payment schedule in the event of underpayment. Should the amount of the adjustment be under dispute, the Company will continue to supply service and the customer shall continue to pay the amounts billed until a final determination is made.

The Company's policy on backbilling for residential customers shall comply with the orders of the Commission and Section 4933.28 of the Ohio Revised Code, as amended from time to time.

17. RESIDENTIAL SERVICE

Individual residences shall be served individually under a residential service schedule. The customer may not take service for two or more separate residences through a single meter under any schedule, irrespective of common ownership of the several residences, except that in the case of an apartment house with a number of individual apartments the landlord shall have the choice of providing separate wiring for each apartment so that the Company may supply each apartment separately under the residential schedule, or of purchasing the entire service through a single meter under the appropriate general service schedule.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-14)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Where a single-family house is converted to include separate living quarters or dwelling units for more than one family, or where two or more families occupy a single-family house with separate cooking facilities, the owner may, instead of providing separate wiring for each dwelling unit, take service through a single meter under the residential service schedule. In such case, there will be a single customer charge, but the quantity of kilowatt-hours in each block will multiplied by the number of dwelling units or families occupying the building.

The residential service schedule shall cease to apply to that portion of a residence which becomes primarily used for business, professional, institutional or gainful purposes. Under these circumstances, customer shall have the choice: (1) of separating the wiring so that the residential portion of the premises is served through a separate meter under the residential service schedule and the other uses as enumerated above are served through a separate meter or meters under the appropriate general service schedule; or (2) of taking the entire service under the appropriate general service schedule. Motors of 10 HP or less may be served under the appropriate residential service schedule. Larger motors may be served where, in the Company's sole judgment, the existing facilities of the Company are adequate.

Detached building or buildings, actually appurtenant to the residence, such as a garage, stable or barn, may be served by an extension of the customer's residence wiring through the residence meter provided no business activities are transacted in the detached buildings.

In the event a detached garage or other facility on a residential customer's property is separately served and metered, such facility shall accordingly be metered and billed according to the appropriate general service rate.

18. DENIAL OR DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

The Company reserves the right to refuse any applicant for service if the applicant is indebted to the Company for any service theretofore rendered at any location, provided the Company shall advise applicant to such effect, and provided that indebtedness for one class of service shall not cause the refusal of service to a different class of service. The Company reserves the right to discontinue to serve any customer without notice in case of an emergency or to prevent theft from or fraud upon the Company. Subject to the further provisions for residential customers contained in Chapter 4901:1-18 of the Ohio Administrative Code which is herein incorporated by reference as it is from time to time amended, the Company also reserves the right after at least 5 days' notice in writing to discontinue to serve any customer (1) who is indebted to the Company for any service theretofore rendered at any location (on other than equal payment plan accounts having a credit balance), and provided that indebtedness for one class of service shall not cause the disconnection of service to a different class of service (2) for failure to provide and maintain adequate security for the payment of bills as requested by the Company, or (3) for failure to comply with these Terms and Conditions. Any discontinuance of service shall not terminate the contract between the Company and the customer nor shall it abrogate any minimum charge which may be effective.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-15)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Effective: December 9, 2009

P.U.C.O. NO. 19

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

When a Company employee is dispatched to a customer's premises for the purpose of performing collection activities due to the customer's delinquency, the customer will be charged \$18.00, the cost to the Company of having the employee at the customer's premises. A Company employee performing a disconnection is not authorized to make any extended payment arrangements with the customer, but will, in lieu of disconnection, accept payment of the delinquent amount plus \$18.00, the cost to the Company of having the employee at the customer's premises to perform the disconnection. The Company may, when in its judgment its employees would be subject to physical harm, require the payment to be by means other than cash. The collection trip charge will not be assessed more than once in any billing period.

If a customer has been disconnected, upon payment or proof of payment of the delinquent amount plus a reconnection fee as specified below, which represents the cost to the Company of disconnecting and reconnecting a customer during the Company's normal working hours, the Company will reconnect the electric service on this same day, if such payment or proof of payment is made at the Company's office by 12:30 p.m., and otherwise as soon as possible but not later than the close of the Company's next regular working day. When such payment is made after 12:30 p.m. and the Company's employees cannot reconnect the service prior to the end of their normal workday, and the customer prefers to be reconnected prior to the beginning of the next regular workday, the disconnection and reconnection charge payable prior to reconnection will be the overtime rate specified below, an amount which recognizes the Company's average additional cost of reconnecting a customer outside of normal working hours.

Reconnection Service Charges:

	Regular	Overtime
Single Phase	\$36.00	\$ 92.00
All Other	\$90.00	\$145.00

19. INTERVAL METERING INSTALLATIONS

A customer may request an interval meter. The cost of any interval metering facilities installed by the Company as a result of such request shall be paid by the customer. The customer shall make a one-time payment for the metering facilities at the time of installation of the requested facilities, or, at the customer's option, up to 24 consecutive equal monthly payments reflecting an annual interest charge as determined by the Company, but not to exceed the cost of the Company's most recent issue of long-term debt. If the customer elects the installment payment option, the Company shall require an initial payment equal to 25% of the total cost of the metering facilities.

In addition, the customer shall pay a net charge to cover the incremental cost of operation and maintenance and meter data management associated with such interval metering as follows. Charges are for service performed on a Company installed standard interval meter.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-16)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Issued by Joseph Hamrock, President AEP Ohio

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Service Performed During Normal Business Hours	Charge (\$)
Connect phone line to meter at a time other than the initial interval	
meter installation	54.00
Perform manual meter reading	39.00
Check phone line and perform manual meter reading due to communication loss	44.00
Repair/replace surge protector	65.00
Repair/replace interval board	146.00
Repair/replace modern board	236.00
Repair/replace interval and modem boards	304.00

The customer may select a meter from the Company's approved equipment list. The customer may communicate with the meter for the purpose of obtaining usage data, subject to the Company's communication protocol. The customer is responsible for providing the telephone line for purposes of reading the meter.

20. PRE-ENROLLMENT CUSTOMER INFORMATION LIST

The Company will offer to CRES Providers the Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List with updates available quarterly throughout the Market Development Period. Customers have the option to remove all of their information (including name, address and historical usage data) from the Customer Information List. Customers may also reinstate their information to the Customer Information List. Customers will be notified of such options quarterly throughout the Market Development Period.

21. EXTENSION OF LOCAL FACILITIES

The Company shall construct suitable electric transmission and distribution facilities under this line extension policy to serve customer premises when the customer can not be served from existing electrical facilities.

Customers requesting new or expanded electric service shall submit detailed and complete information which may include but not be limited to switch size, requested delivery voltage, total estimated load, listing of connected loads, operating characteristics, site survey plans (showing other utilities or underground infrastructure) and first floor elevations before the Company can develop a plan of service and prepare a construction cost estimate.

The Company will determine the modifications to the Company's transmission and/or distribution facilities required to provide for a basic service plan to serve the customer's load. The Company will design, construct, own, operate and maintain the line extension and all other equipment installed to serve the customer's load up to the point of service for each customer.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-17)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Upon receipt of the necessary information from the customer, the Company will comply with Chapter 4901:1-9-07 of the Ohio Administrative Code and exercise its best efforts to expedite the entire process for developing a service plan and preparing a cost estimate.

The Company shall have no obligation to extend, expand or rearrange its facilities if it determines that the existing facilities are adequate to serve the customer's electrical load.

Definitions Used in This Section

- "Basic service plan" means the least cost line extension design using sound engineering practices which meet and/or exceed the National Electrical Safety Code and the Company's construction standards.
- "Contribution in aid of construction or CIAC" means any amount of money or property contributed to the Company to the extent that the purpose of the contribution is to provide for line extensions for new or expanded customer loads.
- 3. "Cost estimate" means the detailed projected expenditure, including material costs and overhead, equipment costs and overhead, labor costs and overhead, and all taxes associated with each major material and service component, required for a line extension. It shall also separately identify any incremental costs associated with providing premium services. The Company may, for the purpose of standardization, establish standard construction cost estimates, for basic or premium service plans, which shall not exceed, in any event, the average cost of constructing such line extensions in the area involved, in which case the term "cost estimate" as used in this section will be understood to mean the standard estimate thus established.
- 4. "Line extension" means the provision of facilities (including, but not limited to, poles, fixtures, wires, and appurtenances) necessary for delivering electrical energy from the point of origin to one or more of the customer's points of delivery. Facilities provided by the Company to maintain, protect, upgrade, or improve its overall distribution system (even if necessary due to a customer's load addition) are not considered part of a line extension.
- 5. "Multifamily installation" means any line extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service.
- 6. "Permanent" means a) a structure that has a permanently installed pressurized domestic water system and septic/sewer system which complies with local codes/regulations and is approved for use by the respective sanitation jurisdictional authority, or b) a structure that is approved for installation on a foundational support that is either a mortared masonry pier/column configuration, a poured concrete slab, or a poured concrete footer and mortared masonry walls on the perimeter of the structure.
- 7. "Point of origin" means the point where a line extension under this rule connects with and receives energy from any existing transmission or distribution equipment. The point of origin shall be the nearest practical point to the customers to be served by the line extension at which the appropriate voltage level is available.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-18)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

 "Premium service" includes, but is not limited to, customer-requested oversizing of facilities, underground construction, three-phase residential service, and any customer request that is in excess of standard construction and requirements necessary to provide electric service to the customer.

Line Extensions

- 1. For line extensions to residential single family homes, both individual homes and homes in a development, unless noted otherwise, the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to five thousand dollars.
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed five thousand dollars. The Company shall afford the nondeveloper, individual homeowner the option of paying those costs, plus carrying costs, on a prorated monthly basis for up to fifty months.
- 2. For line extensions to residential, non-master-metered, multifamily installations (two or more units) the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.
- 3. For line extensions to nonresidential customers the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for sixty per cent of the total cost of the line extension, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost to install, in accordance with good utility practice, a standard line extension to the project).
 - The customer shall be responsible for forty per cent of the total cost of the line extension plus the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-19)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

- c. If a substation is required as part of the line extension project to a customer, the customer shall be given the option of building (pursuant to all applicable electrical standards), owning, and maintaining such substation.
- 4. The payment for premium services and for the cost of residential construction in excess of the limits of five thousand dollars for single-family residences and twenty-five hundred dollars per unit for multifamily residences shall be considered as contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) and shall be grossed-up by the effect of applicable taxes.
- Costs attributed to land clearance activity, trenching, and backfilling required for the installation of line extension facilities on the customer's property are the responsibility of the customer.
- 6. All line extensions shall be the property of and shall be operated and maintained by the Company.
- 7. The Company shall have the right to use any line extension in furnishing service to any applicant located adjacent to such line extension and the further right to construct other extensions from the distribution facilities so constructed.
- 8. Any customer who paid to the Company a CIAC, other than for premium services, may be entitled to a refund of a portion of the CIAC paid in accordance with the following:
 - a. If any new customer, within fifty months of the completion of a line extension project for which an existing customer has paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which the CIAC has been paid, the existing customer who paid the CIAC may be entitled to a refund which represents a pro rata portion of the original CIAC calculated to equitably share the CIAC responsibility for those facilities used in service by both the new and original customer.
 - b. If any new additional customer, within fifty months of the completion of the line extension project for which existing customers have paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which a CIAC has been paid, any existing customers who paid the CIAC may also be entitled to a refund.
 - Any refunds made under a. or b., above shall be after payment has been received from the new customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

OHIO POWER COMPANY COMPLIANCE TARIFF

OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

Filed pursuant to Order in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Schedule		Sheet No(s)	Effective Date
	Cross Reference	1-1D thru 1-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009
•	Table of Contents	1-3D thru 1-4D	December 9, 2009
	List of Communities Served	2-1D thru 2-7D	Cycle 1 April 2009
	Terms and Conditions of Service	3-1D thru 3-22D	December 9, 2009
	Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service	3-23D thru 3-40D	December 9, 2009
	Code of Conduct	3-41D thru 3-42D	December 9, 2009
	Minimum Requirements for Distribution System Interconnection	6-1D thru 6-5D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-RS	Residential Service	10-1D thru 10-3D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-1	General Service – Non-Demand Metered	20-1D thru 20-3D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-2	General Service - Low Load Factor	21-1D thru 21-5D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-3	General Service – Medium/High Load Factor	23-1D thru 23-5D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-GS-4	General Service – Large	24-1D thru 24-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-SBS	Standby Service	27-1D thru 27-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-NEMS	Net Energy Metering Service	28-1D thru 28-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-OL	Outdoor Lighting	40-1D thru 40-4D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-SL	Street Lighting	41-1D thru 41-6D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-EHG	Electric Heating General	42-1D thru 42-3D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-EHS	Electric Heating Schools	43-1D thru 43-3D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-SS	School Service	44-1D thru 44-3D	Cycle 1 April 2009
OAD-PA	Pole Attachment	45-1D thru 45-2D	Cycle 1 April 2009

(Continued on Sheet No. 1-4D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

CONTENTS

Paragraph	Section	Sheet No.
2.	Application	3-1D
22.	Billing Corrections	3-17D
8.	Change of Address by Customer	3-6D
4.	Changing Competitive Service Providers	3-3D
16.	Company's Liability	3-11D
3.	Customer Choice of Competitive Service Provider	3-2D
17.	Customer's Liability	3-13D
24.	Denial or Discontinuance of Service	3-19D
6.	Deposits	3-5D
25.	Extension of Local Facilities	3-20D
9.	Inspection	3-7D
19.	Location and Maintenance of Company's Equipment	3-15D
13.	Losses	3-10D
21.	Meter Registration and Testing	3-17D
14.	Metering and Load Profiling	3-10D
5.	Minimum Stay Requirements	3-4D
11.	Nominal Voltage Levels	3-8D
7.	Payments	3-5D
23.	Residential Service	3-18D
10.	Service Connection	3-8D
18.	Temporary Service	3-14D
12.	Transmission Service	3-9D
20.	Use of Energy by Customer	3-15D
15.	Work Performed on Company's Facilities at Customer's Request	3-11D

APPLICATION

These terms and conditions of service apply to service under the Company's open access distribution schedules which provide for distribution service, irrespective of the voltage level at which service is taken, from the Company, as provided for in Sections 4928.15 and 4928.40, Ohio Revised Code.

A copy of these Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service and the open access distribution schedules applicable to the customer's class of business will be furnished upon request and the customer shall elect upon which applicable schedule the customer desires to be served.

Before the Company shall be required to furnish distribution service, the Company may request that a customer submit written specifications of electrical apparatus to be operated by service, and to furnish the Company a detailed sketch giving the location of the customer's facilities. Such requests will be limited to specific instances where such information significantly assists the Company in designing and sizing its local facilities.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-2D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

When the Company receives notice from an existing customer that distribution service is to be discontinued, or from a prospective customer that an existing distribution service is to be transferred into the prospective customer's name, the Company will, within three (3) business days, determine the meter reading for the final distribution bill to the existing customer. Such determination shall be made either by estimation or, upon customer request, by an actual meter reading. The existing customer will be responsible for all service supplied to the premises until such meter reading and discontinuance or transfer is made. Transfer of service to a qualified prospective customer will not be delayed or denied because of nonpayment of the final distribution bill by the former customer, unless the former customer continues to be a consumer of electric service at that premise.

INSPECTION

It is to the interest of the customer to properly install and maintain the customer's wiring and electrical equipment and the customer shall at all times be responsible for the character and condition thereof. It is the customer's responsibility to assure that all inside wiring is grounded and is otherwise in accordance with the requirements of the National Electrical Code. The Company makes no inspection thereof and in no event shall be responsible therefor.

Where a customer's premises are located in a municipality or other governmental subdivision where inspection laws or ordinances are in effect, the Company may withhold furnishing service to new installations until it has received evidence that the inspection laws or ordinances have been complied with. In addition, if such municipality or other governmental subdivision shall determine that such inspection laws or ordinances are no longer being complied with in respect to an existing installation, the Company may suspend the furnishing of service thereto until it has received evidence of compliance with such laws or ordinances. The Company may disconnect electric distribution service to a premise where unsafe conditions exist.

Where the customer's premises are located outside of an area where inspection service is in effect, the Company may require the delivery by the customer to the Company of an agreement duly signed by the owner and tenant of the premises authorizing the connection to the wiring system of the customer and assuming responsibility therefor.

No responsibility shall attach to the Company because of any waiver of these requirements.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-8D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

10. SERVICE CONNECTION

The Company will, when requested to furnish distribution service, designate the location of its service connection. The customer's wiring must, except for those cases listed below, be brought out of the building in an approved manner from the main service disconnect to outside the building wall nearest the Company's service wires so as to be readily accessible thereto. The point of service drop attachment shall be as high as the construction of the building will permit, but not more than twenty-five (25) feet nor less than twelve (12) feet from the ground (see National Electric Code for vertical clearance requirements of service drop conductors) and shall be located at a point convenient to the Company's lines for making connections thereto, and each of the service wires shall extend at least eighteen (18) inches from the weatherhead on the end of the conduit or cable for making service connections. Service entrance equipment shall be properly grounded and shall be installed so that the disconnecting means is readily accessible. Where customers install service entrance facilities which have capacity and layout specified by the Company and/or install and use certain utilization equipment specified by the Company may provide or offer to own certain facilities on the customer's side of the point where the service wires attach to the building.

In areas served by an overhead distribution system, an overhead service shall be provided by the Company from the Company's distribution system extending one span (approximately 100 feet) toward the customer's facilities. When a customer desires that energy be delivered at a point or in a manner other than that designated by the Company, the customer shall pay the additional cost of same. Rights-of-way or easements necessary for the installation of said service (including private railway wire crossings permits) shall be provided by the customer.

A nonresidential customer desiring an underground service shall, at the customer's expense, install and maintain the necessary service wires, duct work, manholes, vaults and connection boxes in an approved manner from the main entrance switch in the building to a service point designated by the Company, from which connection is to be made. Such underground service will be designed and installed as a continuous run of conductors which shall conform to Company specifications.

Conduit and wires and any equipment, installation and appurtenances furnished, installed and maintained by the customer must conform to the National Electrical Code, as well as applicable governmental requirements.

The Company shall not be required to make any inspection of the wiring, safety switch or other equipment, installation or appurtenances installed and owned by the customer. Any inspection thereof which the Company may make shall be voluntary on its part and for its benefit only, and shall not in any way relieve the customer of any obligations in that respect.

11. NOMINAL VOLTAGE LEVELS

The Company has established the following nominal service voltages of which at least one of the following characteristics shall be made available to a customer, the particular voltage and service characteristics to be at the option of the Company:

<u>Secondary Distribution System</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 120, 120/208, 120/240, or 240/480 volts, single phase; and 120/208, 120/240, 240, 240/480, 277/480, and 480 volts, 3 phase.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-9D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

<u>Primary Distribution System</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles at nominal voltages of 4160, 12,470 and 34,500 volts, 3 phase.

<u>Subtransmission</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 23,000, 34,500 and 69,000 volts.

<u>Transmission</u> - Alternating current, 60 cycles, 3 phase at nominal, unregulated voltage of 138,000 volts.

The Company shall design and operate its system so that under normal operating conditions the voltage delivered at the customer's service entrance, for the voltages listed above, is maintained within the range of plus or minus 5% of the nominal voltage. Wherever voltages shall be known to exist outside of such range, the Company will take steps to promptly initiate corrective action to restore the voltage level to within such range.

12. TRANSMISSION SERVICE

Transmission service shall be made available under the terms and conditions contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff as filed with and accepted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. Either a CRES Provider or the customer may contract with the Transmission Provider for transmission service under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. The Transmission Provider is the applicable regional transmission entity. PJM Interconnection LLC is currently the applicable regional transmission entity. Customers contracting with the Transmission Provider for transmission service and all CRES Providers must complete all required actions relative to membership with the Transmission Provider and be authorized by the Transmission Provider to transact business with regard to transmission service. The contracting entity or its designee is responsible for scheduling under the tariff. Unless other arrangements have been made, the scheduling entity will be billed by the Transmission Provider for transmission services. The contracting entity must also purchase or provide ancillary services as specified under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

Billing and payment shall be performed as specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Any remaining unpaid amounts and associated fees for transmission service are the responsibility of the customer

Provisions for scheduling and imbalance are contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-10D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

LOSSES

Either the CRES Provider or the Transmission Provider may provide both transmission and distribution losses as required to serve customers at various delivery voltages. If a CRES Provider arranges to provide transmission losses under the provisions of the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff, then the CRES Provider must also arrange for the appropriate distribution losses. Customers served at transmission and subtransmission voltages require no additional losses other than the losses specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Customers served at primary distribution voltage require 2.4% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer. Customers served at secondary distribution voltage require 5.9% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer.14.

METERING AND LOAD PROFILING

All customers with maximum monthly billing demands of 200 KW or greater for the most recent twelve (12) months shall be interval metered. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may request an interval meter for customers with maximum monthly billing demands less than 200 kW.

The cost of any interval metering facilities installed by the Company to comply with this requirement or as a result of such request shall be paid by the customer. The customer shall make a one-time payment for the metering facilities at the time of installation of the required facilities, or, at the customer's option, up to 24 consecutive equal monthly payments reflecting an annual interest charge as determined by the Company, but not to exceed the cost of the Company's most recent issue of long-term debt. If the customer elects the installment payment option, the Company shall require an initial payment equal to 25% of the total cost of the metering facilities.

In addition, the customer shall pay a net charge to cover the incremental cost of operation and maintenance and meter data management associated with such interval metering as follows. Charges are for service performed on a Company installed standard interval meter.

Service Performed During Normal Business Hours	Charge (\$)
Connect phone line to meter at a time other than the initial interval meter	
installation	54.00
Perform manual meter reading	39.00
Check phone line and perform manual meter reading due to communication loss	44.00
Repair/replace surge protector	65.00
Repair/replace interval board	146.00
Repair/replace modem board	236.00
Repair/replace interval and modem boards	304.00

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-11D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may select a meter from the Company's approved equipment list. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may communicate with the meter for the purpose of obtaining usage data, subject to the Company's communication protocol. The customer is responsible for providing the telephone line for purposes of reading the meter.

A customer that is required to have interval metering must approve a work order for interval meter installation before a CRES Provider may serve such customer. During the period between when the customer has requested an interval meter and the time that the Company is able to install such a meter, a Company load profile will be used for settlement purposes and consumption meter readings will be used for billing.

All load profiling shall be performed by the Company. Sample data and customer specific interval metering, when available, will be used in the development of the total load profile for which a CRES Provider is responsible for providing generation and possibly transmission services. Such data shall be provided to the BA or other entities as required for monthly billing.

15. WORK PERFORMED ON COMPANY'S FACILITIES AT CUSTOMER'S REQUEST

Whenever, at the request of a customer and solely to suit the convenience of the customer, work is performed on the Company's facilities or the Company's facilities are relocated, the customer shall pay to the Company, in advance, the estimated total cost of such work. This cost shall be itemized by major categories and shall include the Company's standard overheads and be credited with the net value of any salvageable material. The actual costs for the work performed will be determined after its completion and the appropriate additional charge or refund will be made to the customer.

COMPANY'S LIABILITY

The Company will use reasonable diligence in delivering a regular and uninterrupted supply of energy to the customer, but does not guarantee uninterrupted service. The Company shall not be liable for damages in case such service should be interrupted or fail by reason of an act of God, the public enemy, accidents, labor disputes, orders or acts of civil or military authority, breakdowns or injury to the machinery, transmission lines, distribution lines or other facilities of the Company, extraordinary repairs, or any act of the Company, including the interruption of service to any customer, taken to prevent or limit the extent or duration of interruption, instability or disturbance on the electric system of the Company or any electric system interconnected, directly or indirectly, with the Company's system, whenever such act is necessary or indicated in the sole judgment of the Company.

The Company shall not be liable for damages in case such service to the customer should be interrupted by failure of the customer's CRES Provider to provide appropriate energy to the Company for delivery to the customer.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-12D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

Unless otherwise provided in a contract between the Company and the customer, the point at which service is delivered by the Company to the customer, to be known as "delivery point," shall be the point at which the customer's facilities are connected to the Company's facilities. The Company shall not be liable for any loss, injury, or damage resulting from the customer's use of the customer's equipment or occasioned by the distribution service furnished by the Company beyond the delivery point. The Company shall not be liable for any loss, injury, or damage caused by equipment which is not owned, installed and maintained by the Company.

The customer shall provide and maintain suitable protective devices on the customer's equipment to prevent any loss, injury, or damage that might result from single phasing conditions or any other fluctuation or irregularity in the delivery of energy. The Company shall not be liable for any loss, injury, or damage resulting from a single phasing condition or any other fluctuation or irregularity in the delivery of energy which could have been prevented by the use of such protective devices.

Except as otherwise provided in this Section, the Company shall be liable to the customer for damage directly resulting from interruptions, irregularities, delays, or failures of distribution service, caused by the negligence of the Company or its employees or agents, but any such liability shall not exceed the cost of repairing or replacing equipment, appliances, and perishable food stored in a customer's residence damaged as a direct result of such negligence. The customer must notify the Company of any claim based on such negligence within thirty days after the interruption, irregularity, delay or failure begins. The Company shall not be liable for consequential damages of any kind. This limitation shall not relieve the Company from liability which might otherwise be imposed by law with respect to any claims for personal injuries to the customer.

The Company will provide and maintain the necessary line or service connections, transformers (when same are required by conditions of contract between the parties thereto), and other apparatus which may be required for the protection to its service. All such apparatus shall be and remain the property of the Company and the Company shall be granted ready access to the same. The Company or MSP will provide and maintain the necessary meters and other apparatus which may be required for the proper measurement of the Company service. All such apparatus shall be and remain the property of either the Company or MSP and the Company or MSP shall be granted ready access to the same, except to read inside meters. Such access to inside meters shall be granted upon reasonable request to residential customers during regular business hours.

Approval of the above schedule language by the Commission does not constitute a determination by the Commission that the limitation of liability imposed by the Company should be upheld in a court of law. Approval by the Commission merely recognizes that since it is a court's responsibility to adjudicate negligence and consequent damage claims, it is also the court's responsibility to determine the validity of the exculpatory clause.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-13D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

17. CUSTOMER'S LIABILITY

In the event the customer is unable to receive distribution service in the full amount contemplated by the customer's regular distribution service arrangements for a period in excess of fifteen full days as a result of fire, riot, explosion, flood, accident, breakdown or acts of God or the public enemy, said customer shall not be liable to the Company for minimum demand or billing charges for which the customer normally would be liable pursuant to the open access distribution schedule and/or contract during the period of distribution service decrease of electricity usage, provided:

- A. The customer notifies the Company in writing of the customer's inability to receive distribution service as a result of one or more of the above specified event(s); and
- B. Said notice includes (in addition to any other pertinent information):
 - (1) Extent (or magnitude) of the distribution service decrease
 - (2) Date of the event
 - (3) Cause of the event
 - (4) Probable duration of the distribution service decrease; and
- C. The customer is prompt and diligent in removing the cause of the service decrease; and
- D. The customer submits a report to the Company at least every thirty days following the event explaining the customer's progress toward removing the cause of the distribution service decrease; and
- E. The customer pays, pursuant to the customer's open access distribution schedule and/or contract, for all distribution service rendered prior to the service decrease.

In no event, however, shall this provision affect open access distribution minimum demand or billing charges in any billing period prior to the date on which the Company receives the customer notice required above unless that notice is received within fifteen days of the above specified events.

During the period that the terms of this provision shall be in effect, the customer shall pay for all distribution service received, the charges for such service being determined pursuant to the open access distribution schedule under which the customer had been served prior to the event except for the minimum demand or billing charges which were waived as a consequence of this provision. Under no circumstance shall the waiver of the minimum demand or billing charges extend beyond the time the cause of the distribution service decrease has been removed. On the date that the cause of the distribution service decrease has been removed, billing shall resume pursuant to the customer's open access distribution schedule and/or contract.

Any contract, which has been affected by the application of this provision, shall have its term extended for a period of time equal in length to the duration of distribution service decrease.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-14D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

If the event causing the distribution service decrease is of such severity that the customer decides not to continue in business at the affected location, and so notifies the Company in writing, the above provision will not be applied. Under such circumstances, the customer will pay to the Company (1) a sum equal to the value of the Company's estimated original plant in service including the cost of the transmission and distribution voltage lines and other equipment erected or reserved specifically for that customer's use, less accumulated depreciation and less the net salvage value of that equipment, or (2) any remaining demand or minimum bill charges due under the contract or any extension thereof resulting from application of this provision.

In the event of loss or injury to the property of the Company through misuse by, or the negligence of, the customer or the employees of the same, the cost of the necessary repairs or replacement thereof shall be paid to the Company by the customer.

Customers will be responsible for tampering with, interfering with, or breaking of seals of meters, or other equipment of the Company installed on the customer's premises. No one except the employees of the Company, or its agents, shall be allowed to make any internal or external adjustments of any meter or any other piece of apparatus which shall be the property of the Company.

Customers will also be responsible for tampering with, interfering with, or breaking of seals of meters installed by an MSP or other related apparatus, regardless of ownership. No one except the employees of the Company, MSP, or their agents, shall be allowed to make any internal or external adjustments of any such meter, regardless of ownership.

At the request of any customer served on a schedule containing a separate demand charge, the Company shall provide a demand signal to the customer. The customer shall pay to the Company the cost for providing the signal. The Company shall not be liable for a loss of signal. The Company shall not be liable for a loss of signal, and in such event the customer shall pay for the demand and energy as actually metered by the Company.

The Company shall have the right during regular working hours and in emergencies to enter the premises of the customer for the purpose of installing, reading, removing, testing, replacing, or otherwise disposing of its apparatus and property, and the right of entire removal of the Company's property in the event of the termination of the contract for any cause. The customer will keep the area where the Company's apparatus and property are located free from obstruction, danger and/or safety hazards. The Company's agent will, upon request, show credentials and state the reasons for requiring access.

18. TEMPORARY SERVICE

The Company will supply temporary distribution service when it has available unsold capacity in its lines and transformers. Customers who have seasonal operations at permanent locations, or who have other sources of energy supply not requiring distribution service from the Company and desire distribution service for standby or breakdown purposes, must contract for permanent distribution service under an open access distribution schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will be subject to the terms of that schedule including the minimum bill and term of contract provisions.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-15D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

The customer will purchase temporary distribution service under any schedule applicable to the customer's class of business and will, in addition, pay to the Company, in advance, the Company's estimated total cost of installing and removing its facilities necessary for the temporary service. The total cost will include all material, labor and overheads, with appropriate credits being given for salvageable material and for facilities to be used in subsequent permanent service. Charges for the following categories of temporary service are fixed as follows:

Service requiring only reading-in and reading-out an existing meter	\$	23.50
Single-phase 120/240 volt service from permanent source, up to		
100 Ampere Capacity	\$:	204.00

The Company shall not be required to construct general distribution lines underground unless the cost of such special construction for general distribution lines and/or the cost of any change of existing overhead general distribution lines to underground which is required or specified by a municipality or other public authority (to the extent that such cost exceeds the cost of construction of the Company's standard facilities) shall be paid for by that municipality or public authority. The "cost of any change" as used herein, shall be the cost to the Company of such change. The "cost of special construction" as used herein, shall be the actual cost to the Company in excess of the cost of standard construction. When a charge is to be based on the excess cost, the Company and municipality or other public authority shall negotiate the amount thereof.

Temporary distribution service supplied for a period less than one (1) full month will be billed on the basis of a full month's schedule billing under the applicable open access distribution schedule, including the minimum charge if applicable.

19. LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE OF COMPANY'S EQUIPMENT

As required to provide distribution service to a customer, the Company shall have the right to construct and maintain its poles, lines, circuits and other necessary facilities on the customers property, and to place its transformers and other apparatus on the property or within the buildings of the customer, at a point or points mutually acceptable to the Company and the customer for such purpose. The customer shall provide suitable space and access to same, for the installation and maintenance of necessary measuring instruments and other facilities, so that they may be protected from injury by the elements or through the negligence or deliberate acts of the customer or of any employee of the same, or any other party.

20. USE OF ENERGY BY CUSTOMER

The schedules for open access distribution service given herein are classified by the character of use of such service and are not available for service except as provided therein.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-16D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

It shall be understood that upon the expiration of a contract the customer may elect to renew the distribution service contract upon the same or another open access distribution schedule published by the Company and applicable to the customer's requirements, except that in no case shall the Company be required to maintain transmission, switching or transformation equipment (either for voltage or form of current change) different from or in addition to that generally furnished to other customers receiving distribution service under the terms of the open access distribution schedule elected by the customer.

A customer may not change from one open access distribution schedule to another during the term of contract except with the consent of the Company.

The service connections, transformers, meters and appliances supplied by the Company for each customer have a definite capacity and no additions to the equipment, or load connected thereto, will be allowed except by consent of the Company.

The customer shall install only motors, apparatus, or appliances which are suitable for operation with the character of the service supplied by the Company, and which shall not be detrimental to same, and the electric power must not be used in such a manner as to cause unprovided for voltage fluctuations or disturbances in the Company's transmission or distribution system. The Company shall be the sole judge as to the suitability of apparatus or appliances, and also as to whether the operation of such apparatus or appliances is or will be detrimental to its general service.

The operation of certain electrical equipment can result in disturbances (e.g. voltage fluctuations, harmonics, etc.) on the transmission and distribution systems which can adversely impact the operation of equipment for other customers. Nonresidential customers are expected to abide by industry standards, such as those contained in ANSI/IEEE 519 or the IEEE/GE voltage flicker criteria, when operating such equipment. In accordance with the Electric Service and Safety Standards, Chapter 4901:1-10-15 (D) of the Ohio Administrative Code, the Company may refuse or disconnect service to nonresidential customers for using electricity or equipment which adversely affects distribution company service to other customers. Copies of the applicable criteria will be provided upon request.

No attachment of any kind whatsoever may be made to the Company's lines, poles, crossarms, structures, or other facilities without the express written consent of the Company.

All apparatus used by the customer shall be of such type as to secure the highest practical commercial efficiency, power factor and the proper balancing of phases. Motors which are frequently started or motors arranged for automatic control, must be of a type to give maximum starting torque with minimum current flow, and must be of a type, and equipped with controlling devices, approved by the Company. The customer agrees to promptly notify the Company prior to any significant increase or decrease in the customer's connected load, which could impact the capacity requirements of the Company's local facilities.

The Company will not supply distribution service to customers who have other cogeneration, small power production or other sources of on-site energy supply except under schedules which specifically provide for same.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-17D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

The customer shall not be permitted to operate the customer's own generating equipment in parallel with the Company's service except on written permission of the Company.

21. METER REGISTRATION AND TESTING

Any kilowatt-hour meter registering between 2% fast and 2% slow will be considered to be registering correctly. Any integrating block interval demand meter or thermal demand meter registering between 4% high and 4% low will be considered to be registering correctly.

The Company will, upon request of the customer, test any Company-owned meter suspected of improper registration, once at no cost to the customer. For each subsequent test conducted within thirty-six months of the last previous test, if the meter is found to be registering correctly, the customer shall pay to the Company a \$59 fee for a single phase meter test and a \$73 fee for a three phase meter test. The customer shall be told the amount of such charge when the customer requests the meter test within such thirty-six month period. Such test, witnessed by the customer if so desired, will be conducted using a properly calibrated meter standard. Any Company-owned meter found registering correctly will be resealed and the date and results of the test entered on the Company's records.

The Company will replace at its expense any Company-owned meter registering incorrectly and will make billing corrections in accordance with the following section for any services billed by the Company.

22. BILLING CORRECTIONS

If the amount of energy consumed is not properly registered by a meter for any reason or is not properly charged to the customer's account, the entity providing billing services, either the Company or a BA, will, for the period of time that incorrect billings can be established, adjust the meter readings and billings to reflect all available information concerning the actual use by the customer. Any resulting overpayment will be paid or credited to the customer by the appropriate billing entity. Except as provided below, any underpayment, not to exceed the length of time of the underbilling, except at the discretion of the Company and/or BA will be billed to the customer. The Company will, if the customer requests, attempt to arrange a reasonable payment schedule in the event of underpayment of charges under the applicable open access distribution schedule. Should the amount of the adjustment for distribution charges be under dispute, the Company will continue to supply distribution service and the customer shall continue to pay the amounts billed until a final determination is made.

The Company's policy on backbilling for residential customers shall comply with the orders of the Commission and Section 4933.28 of the Ohio Revised Code, as amended from time to time.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-18D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009

P.U.C.O. NO. 19

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

23. RESIDENTIAL SERVICE

Individual residences shall be served individually under a residential open access distribution schedule. Customer may not take distribution service for two or more separate residences through a single meter under any schedule, irrespective of common ownership of the several residences, except that in the case of an apartment house with a number of individual apartments the landlord shall have the choice of providing separate wiring for each apartment so that the Company may provide delivery to each apartment separately under the residential open access distribution schedule, or of purchasing the entire distribution service through a single meter under the appropriate general service open access distribution schedule.

Where a single-family house is converted to include separate living quarters or dwelling units for more than one family, or where two or more families occupy a single-family house with separate cooking facilities, the owner may, instead of providing separate wiring for each dwelling unit, take service through a single meter under the residential open access distribution schedule. In such case, there will be a single customer charge, but the quantity of kilowatt-hours in each block will be multiplied by the number of dwelling units or families occupying the building.

The residential open access distribution schedule shall cease to apply to that portion of a residence which becomes primarily used for business, professional, institutional or gainful purposes. Under these circumstances, the customer shall have the choice: (1) of separating the wiring so that the residential portion of the premises is served through a separate meter under the residential open access distribution schedule and the other uses as enumerated above are served through a separate meter or meters under the appropriate general service open access distribution schedule; or (2) of taking the entire service under the appropriate general service open access distribution schedule. Motors of 10 HP or less may be served under the appropriate residential open access distribution schedule. Larger motors may be served where, in the Company's sole judgment, the existing facilities of the Company are adequate.

Detached building or buildings, actually appurtenant to the residence, such as a garage, stable or barn, may be served by an extension of the customer's residence wiring through the residence meter provided no business activities are transacted in the detached buildings.

In the event a detached garage or other facility on a residential customer's property is separately served and metered, such facility shall accordingly be metered and billed according to the appropriate general service open access distribution schedule.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-19D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Issued by Joseph Hamrock, President

AEP Ohio

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

24. DENIAL OR DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE

The Company reserves the right to refuse any applicant for distribution service if the applicant is indebted to the Company for any service theretofore rendered at any location, provided Company shall advise applicant to such effect, and provided that indebtedness for one class of service shall not cause the refusal of service to a different class of service. The Company reserves the right to discontinue to provide distribution service to any customer without notice in case of an emergency or to prevent theft from or fraud upon the Company. Subject to the further provisions for residential customers contained in Chapter 4901:1-18 of the Ohio Administrative Code which is herein incorporated by reference as it is from time to time amended, the Company also reserves the right after at least 5 days' notice in writing to discontinue distribution service to any customer (1) who is indebted to the Company for any service theretofore rendered at any location (on other than equal payment plan accounts having a credit balance), and provided that indebtedness for one class of service shall not cause the disconnection of service to a different class of service (2) for failure to provide and maintain adequate security for the payment of bills as requested by the Company, or (3) for failure to comply with these Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service. discontinuance of distribution service shall not terminate the contract between the Company and the customer nor shall it abrogate any minimum charge which may be effective.

When a Company employee is dispatched to a customer's premises for the purpose of performing collection activities due to the customer's delinquency, the customer will be charged \$18.00, the cost to the Company of having the employee at the customer's premises. A Company employee performing a disconnection of distribution service is not authorized to make any extended payment arrangements with the customer, but will, in lieu of disconnection, accept payment of the delinquent amount plus \$18.00, the cost to the Company of having the employee at the customer's premises to perform the disconnection. The Company may, when in its judgment its employees would be subject to physical harm, require the payment to be by means other than cash. The collection trip charge will not be assessed more than once in any billing period.

If a customer has been disconnected, upon payment or proof of payment of the delinquent amount for distribution services plus a reconnection fee as specified below, which represents the cost to the Company of disconnecting and reconnecting a customer during the Company's normal working hours, the Company will reconnect the distribution service on this same day, if such payment or proof of payment is made at the Company's authorized payment agent by 12:30 p.m., and otherwise as soon as possible but not later than the close of the Company's next regular working day. When such payment is made after 12:30 p.m. and the Company's employees cannot reconnect the distribution service prior to the end of their normal workday, and the customer prefers to be reconnected prior to the beginning of the next regular workday, the disconnection and reconnection charge payable prior to reconnection will be the overtime rate specified below, an amount which recognizes the Company's average additional cost of reconnecting a customer outside of normal working hours.

Reconnection Service Charges:

 Regular
 Overtime

 Single Phase
 \$36.00
 \$ 92.00

 All Other
 \$90.00
 \$145.00

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-20D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

25. EXTENSION OF LOCAL FACILITIES

The Company shall construct suitable electric transmission and distribution facilities under this line extension policy to serve customer premises when the customer can not be served from existing electrical facilities.

Customers requesting new or expanded electric service shall submit detailed and complete information which may include but not be limited to switch size, requested delivery voltage, total estimated load, listing of connected loads, operating characteristics, site survey plans (showing other utilities or underground infrastructure) and first floor elevations before the Company can develop a plan of service and prepare a construction cost estimate.

The Company will determine the modifications to the Company's transmission and/or distribution facilities required to provide for a basic service plan to serve the customer's load. The Company will design, construct, own, operate and maintain the line extension and all other equipment installed to serve the customer's load up to the point of service for each customer.

Upon receipt of the necessary information from the customer, the Company will comply with Chapter 4901:1-9-07 of the Ohio Administrative Code and exercise its best efforts to expedite the entire process for developing a service plan and preparing a cost estimate.

The Company shall have no obligation to extend, expand or rearrange its facilities if it determines that the existing facilities are adequate to serve the customer's electrical load.

Definitions Used in This Section

- "Basic service plan" means the least cost line extension design using sound engineering practices which meet and/or exceed the National Electrical Safety Code and the Company's construction standards.
- 2. "Contribution in aid of construction or CIAC" means any amount of money or property contributed to the Company to the extent that the purpose of the contribution is to provide for line extensions for new or expanded customer loads.
- 3. "Cost estimate" means the detailed projected expenditure, including material costs and overhead, equipment costs and overhead, labor costs and overhead, and all taxes associated with each major material and service component, required for a line extension. It shall also separately identify any incremental costs associated with providing premium services. The Company may, for the purpose of standardization, establish standard construction cost estimates, for basic or premium service plans, which shall not exceed, in any event, the average cost of constructing such line extensions in the area involved, in which case the term "cost estimate" as used in this section will be understood to mean the standard estimate thus established.
- 4. "Line extension" means the provision of facilities (including, but not limited to, poles, fixtures, wires, and appurtenances) necessary for delivering electrical energy from the point of origin to one or more of the customer's points of delivery. Facilities provided by the Company to maintain, protect, upgrade, or improve its overall distribution system (even if necessary due to a customer's load addition) are not considered part of a line extension.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-21D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

- 5. "Multifamily installation" means any line extension to a new residential dwelling that will have two or more dwelling units, where each unit has a separate account for electric service.
- 6. "Permanent" means a) a structure that has a permanently installed pressurized domestic water system and septic/sewer system which complies with local codes/regulations and is approved for use by the respective sanitation jurisdictional authority, or b) a structure that is approved for installation on a foundational support that is either a mortared masonry pier/column configuration, a poured concrete slab, or a poured concrete footer and mortared masonry walls on the perimeter of the structure.
- 7. "Point of origin" means the point where a line extension under this rule connects with and receives energy from any existing transmission or distribution equipment. The point of origin shall be the nearest practical point to the customers to be served by the line extension at which the appropriate voltage level is available.
- 8. "Premium service" includes, but is not limited to, customer-requested oversizing of facilities, underground construction, three-phase residential service, and any customer request that is in excess of standard construction and requirements necessary to provide electric service to the customer.

Line Extensions

- 1. For line extensions to residential single family homes, both individual homes and homes in a development, unless noted otherwise, the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to five thousand dollars.
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed five thousand dollars. The Company shall afford the nondeveloper, individual homeowner the option of paying those costs, plus carrying costs, on a prorated monthly basis for up to fifty months.
- 2. For line extensions to residential, non-master-metered, multifamily installations (two or more units) the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for all costs, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost of a standard, single-phase installation), up to twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. The customer shall make arrangements with the Company for the payment of the non-premium line extension costs that exceed twenty-five hundred dollars per unit.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-22D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPEN ACCESS DISTRIBUTION SERVICE

- 3. For line extensions to nonresidential customers the following shall apply:
 - a. The Company shall be responsible for sixty per cent of the total cost of the line extension, excluding the incremental costs of premium services (the sum of the Company's cost to provide the premium installation minus the Company's cost to install, in accordance with good utility practice, a standard line extension to the project).
 - b. The customer shall be responsible for forty per cent of the total cost of the line extension plus the incremental costs of premium services prior to the start of construction.
 - c. If a substation is required as part of the line extension project to a customer, the customer shall be given the option of building (pursuant to all applicable electrical standards), owning, and maintaining such substation.
- 4. The payment for premium services and for the cost of residential construction in excess of the limits of five thousand dollars for single-family residences and twenty-five hundred dollars per unit for multifamily residences shall be considered as contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) and shall be grossed-up by the effect of applicable taxes.
- Costs attributed to land clearance activity, trenching, and backfilling required for the installation of line extension facilities on the customer's property are the responsibility of the customer.
- All line extensions shall be the property of and shall be operated and maintained by the Company.
- 7. The Company shall have the right to use any line extension in furnishing service to any applicant located adjacent to such line extension and the further right to construct other extensions from the distribution facilities so constructed.
- 8. Any customer who paid to the Company a CIAC, other than for premium services, may be entitled to a refund of a portion of the CIAC paid in accordance with the following:
 - a. If any new customer, within fifty months of the completion of a line extension project for which an existing customer has paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which the CIAC has been paid, the existing customer who paid the CIAC may be entitled to a refund which represents a pro rata portion of the original CIAC calculated to equitably share the CIAC responsibility for those facilities used in service by both the new and original customer.
 - b. If any new additional customer, within fifty months of the completion of the line extension project for which existing customers have paid to the Company a CIAC, utilizes all or part of the facilities for which a CIAC has been paid, any existing customers who paid the CIAC may also be entitled to a refund.
 - c. Any refunds made under a. or b., above shall be after payment has been received from the new customer.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

CONTENTS

Paragraph	Section	Sheet No.
2.	Application	3-23D
24.	Billing Corrections	3-40D
4.	Changing Competitive Service Providers	3-24D
21.	Company's Liability	3-39D
22.	Competitive Service Provider's Liability	3-39D
12.	Confidentiality of Information	3-32D
16.	Consolidated Billing by a Billing Agent	3-35D
17.	Consolidated Billing by the Company	3-37D
10.	CRES Provider Credit Requirements	3-28D
9.	CRES Provider Registration with the Company	3-27D
3.	Customer Choice of Competitive Service Provider	3-240
11.	Customer Enrollment Process	3-29D
19.	Deposits	3-38D
6.	General Provisions for Competitive Service Providers	3-26D
13.	Losses	3-32D
15.	Meter Data Management Agents (MDMAs)	3-34D
23.	Meter Accuracy and Tests	3-39D
14.	Meter Service Providers (MSPs)	3-32D
18.	Metering and Load Profiling	3-37D
5.	Minimum Stay Requirements	3-26D
20.	Payments	3-38D
8.	Supplier Certification with the Commission	3-27D
25.	Termination or Suspension of a CRES Provider	3-40D
7.	Transmission Service	3-27D

APPLICATION

These Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service apply to any person, firm, copartnership, voluntary association, joint-stock association, company or corporation, wherever organized or incorporated, that is engaged in the business of supplying electricity to customers that take distribution service from the Company. These Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service also apply to any such entity that is engaged in the business of providing metering, meter data management and billing services to customers that take distribution service from the Company.

A copy of the Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service under which service is to be rendered will be furnished upon request.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-24D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

CUSTOMER CHOICE OF COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDER

Customers taking service under the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service may elect energy services from a qualified CRES Provider, metering services from a qualified Meter Service Provider (MSP), meter data management services from a qualified Meter Data Management Agent (MDMA) and/or billing services from a qualified Billing Agent (BA). Any MSP, MDMA and/or BA services provided to the customer must be arranged through the CRES Provider who provides energy services to the customer.

Qualifications and other eligibility criteria for such entities are specified herein. CRES Providers, MSPs, MDMAs and BAs are also subject to the rules and certification criteria established by the Commission for such entities as incorporated herein. CRES Providers, MSPs, MDMAs and BAs are collectively referred to as Competitive Service Providers (CSPs).

Any customer who desires service from a CSP must first contract with a CRES Provider who will arrange for the provision of such services. The CRES Provider shall then notify the Company at least twelve (12) calendar days prior to the customer's regularly scheduled meter reading date after which the customer will receive service from the CSP. All changes in CRES Provider shall occur at the end of the customer's regularly scheduled meter reading date. Any request to change a customer's CRES Provider received after twelve (12) calendar days prior to the customer's regularly scheduled meter reading date shall become effective the subsequent billing month.

Upon request, customers will be sent an information package containing a summary of the Customer Choice program and a current list of CRES Providers.

The list of CRES Providers will be provided to any customer upon request, all new customers, any customer who is dropped for nonpayment by a CRES Provider, and any customer who returns to the Company's Standard Offer Service due to default by a CRES Provider.

The list of CRES Providers will be posted on the Company's website. The list of CRES Providers will contain the names of those CRES Providers currently registered to enroll and actively seeking residential customers in the Company's service territory.

CHANGING COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDERS

During the Market Development Period, Standard Offer Service will be provided under the Company's standard schedules.

Customers may change CSPs no more than once during any month subject to the provisions below.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-25D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Requests to change a customer's CRES Provider must be received by the Company from the new CRES Provider. If the Company receives such a request to change a customer's CRES Provider, the customer shall be notified by the Company concerning the requested change within two business days. If the customer challenges the requested change, the change will not be initiated. The customer has seven (7) days from the postmark date on the notice to contact the Company to rescind the enrollment request or notify the Company that the change of CRES Provider was not requested by the customer. Within two business days after receiving a customer request to rescind enrollment with a CRES Provider, the Company shall initiate such rescission and mail the customer confirmation that such action has been taken.

Any request for initial service for a customer under the Company's open access distribution schedules or subsequent changes to a customer's MSP, MDMA and/or BA must be provided by the CRES Provider that provides energy services to the customer and arranges for such MSP, MDMA and/or BA services on behalf of the customer. The CRES Provider must obtain, and maintain documentation of, authorization from the customer for any changes in MSP, MDMA and/or BA.

The customer shall pay a charge of \$10.00 to the Company for each transaction in which a customer authorizes a change in one or more CSPs. However, this switching charge shall not apply in the following specific circumstances: (a) the customer's initial change to service under the Company's open access distribution schedules and service from a CRES Provider, (b) the customer's CRES Provider is changed involuntarily, (c) the customer returns to service from the customer's former CRES Provider following an involuntary change in CRES Provider, or (d) the customer's former CRES Provider's services have been permanently terminated and the customer must choose another CRES Provider.

In the event that a CSP's services are permanently terminated, and the CSP has not provided for service to the effected customers, the CSP shall send timely notification to the Company and the effected customers regarding the termination of such services. Such notification shall describe the process for selecting a new CSP and note that service will be provided by the Company under the Company's Standard Offer Service if a new CSP is not selected.

A customer's return to the Company's Standard Offer Service may be a result of customer choice, CRES Provider default, termination of a CRES Provider contract, opt out or termination of a governmental aggregation program, or CRES Provider withdrawal. A customer will be returned to Standard Offer Service only after the customer fails to choose an alternative CRES Provider.

A customer may contact the Company and request to return to the Company's Standard Offer Service. The return to Standard Offer Service shall be conducted under the same terms and conditions applicable to an enrollment with a CRES Provider. The customer will have a seven (7) calendar day rescission period after requesting the Company's Standard Offer Service. Provided the customer has observed the applicable notification requirements and the Company has effectuated the request to return to Standard Offer Service at least twelve (12) calendar days prior to the next regularly scheduled meter reading date, the customer will be returned to Standard Offer Service on the next regularly scheduled meter reading date.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-26D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

5. MINIMUM STAY REQUIREMENTS

Large commercial and industrial customers returning to Standard Offer Service must remain on Standard Offer Service for a period of not less than twelve (12) consecutive months.

Customers served under residential and small commercial (GS-1) rate schedules returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service will not be subject to a minimum stay requirement during the first year of the Market Development Period. After the first year of the Market Development Period, any such customer returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service must remain on the Company's Standard Offer Service through April 15 of the following year if that customer received the Company's Standard Offer Service at any time during the period from May 16 to September 15.

A customer returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service as a result of opting out of a governmental aggregation program or as a result of a CRES Provider default during the Market Development Period as described in Sections 4928.20(D) and 4928.35(D), Ohio Revised Code, will not be subject to the above minimum stay requirements.

Customers of a governmental aggregation where the legislative authority that formed such governmental aggregation has filed written notice with the Commission pursuant to Section 4928.20 (J), Ohio Revised Code, that it has elected not to receive default service from the Company at standard service offer rates may not return to the Company's standard service offer. Such customers shall pay for service at the prevailing market price of power plus costs of the Company's compliance with the alternative energy resource provisions of section 4928.64, Ohio Revised Code.

Any residential or small commercial customer returning to the Company's Standard Offer Service and subject to the minimum stay provision will be given appropriate notice by the Company. The customer will be given at least 14 days notice that the customer will be returned to the Company's Standard Offer Service subject to the minimum stay period provision above if the customer fails to choose another alternative. Such notice will clearly specify (1) the date by which the customer must choose another CRES Provider or alternative and that the customer will return to the Company's Standard Offer Service if the customer fails to make such choice; (2) the minimum stay period during which the customer will be ineligible to choose another CRES Provider; and (3) any alternatives available to the customer to avoid the minimum stay period.

GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDERS

A CSP must comply with all rules and requirements established by the Commission pertaining, but not limited to, general business practices, information disclosure, customer contract rescission, dispute resolution, customer authorization for switching suppliers, termination of customer contracts, information exchange and supply obligations. A CSP must also agree to comply with all applicable provisions of the Company's open access distribution service schedules, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, and the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. A CSP must also comply with the National Electrical Safety Code if applicable to the service provided by the CSP.

No more than two CRES Providers may provide Competitive Retail Electric Service to a customer during any given billing month.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-27D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

A customer is not permitted to have partial Competitive Retail Electric Service. The CRES Provider(s) shall be responsible for providing the total energy consumed by the customer during any given billing month.

7. TRANSMISSION SERVICE

Transmission service shall be made available under the terms and conditions contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff as filed with and accepted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. Either a CRES Provider or the customer may contract with the Transmission Provider for transmission service under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. The Transmission Provider is the applicable regional transmission entity. PJM Interconnection LLC is currently the applicable regional transmission entity. Customers contracting with the Transmission Provider for transmission service and all CRES Providers must complete all required actions relative to membership with the Transmission Provider and be authorized by the Transmission Provider to transact business with regard to transmission service. The contracting entity or its designee is responsible for scheduling under the tariff. Unless other arrangements have been made, the scheduling entity will be billed by the Transmission Provider for transmission services. The contracting entity must also purchase or provide ancillary services as specified under the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

Billing and payment shall be performed as specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Any remaining unpaid amounts and associated fees for transmission service are the responsibility of the customer.

Provisions for scheduling and imbalance are contained within the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff.

SUPPLIER CERTIFICATION WITH THE COMMISSION

Suppliers desiring to become CRES Providers must first be certified by the Commission and shall be subject to any certification criteria adopted by the Commission according to Section 4928.08, Ohio Revised Code.

9. CRES PROVIDER REGISTRATION WITH THE COMPANY

CRES Providers desiring to provide Competitive Retail Electric Service to customers located within the Company's Service Territory must also register with the Company. The following information must be provided in order to register with the Company:

- A. Proof of certification by the Commission, including any information provided to the Commission as part of the certification process. The registration process may be initiated upon receipt by the Company of an application for certification by the Commission. However, the Company will not complete the registration process until proof of certification by the Commission has been provided.
- B. A completed copy of the Company's CRES Provider Registration Application, along with a non-refundable \$100.00 registration fee payable to the Company.
- C. After the first year, a \$100.00 annual registration fee payable to the Company.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-28D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

- D. An appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company against CRES Provider defaults and a description of the CRES Provider's plan to procure sufficient electric energy and transmission services to meet the requirements of its firm service customers.
- E. The name of the CRES Provider, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).
- F. Details of the CRES Provider's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.
- G. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the CRES Provider committing it to adhere to the Company's Open Access Distribution Schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the CRES Provider and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- H. An Executed EDI Trading Partner Agreement and completion of EDI testing for applicable transaction sets necessary to commence service.

The Company shall approve or disapprove the CRES Provider's registration within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of complete registration information from the CRES Provider. The thirty (30) day time period may be extended for up to thirty (30) days for good cause shown, or until such other time as is mutually agreed to by the CRES Provider and the Company.

The Company will notify the CRES Provider of incomplete registration information within ten (10) calendar days of receipt. The notice to the CRES Provider shall include a description of the missing or incomplete information.

Alternative dispute resolution under the provisions of Chapter 4901:1-26 of the Ohio Administrative Code shall be available to CRES Providers and the Company to address disputes and differences between the parties.

CRES PROVIDER CREDIT REQUIREMENTS

The Company will apply, on a non-discriminatory and consistent basis, reasonable financial standards to assess and examine a CRES Provider's creditworthiness. These standards will take into consideration the scope of operations of each CRES Provider and the level of risk to the Company. This determination will be aided by appropriate data concerning the CRES Provider, including load data or reasonable estimates thereof, where applicable.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-29D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

A CRES Provider shall satisfy its creditworthiness requirement and receive an unsecured credit limit by demonstrating that it has, and maintains, investment grade long-term bond ratings from any two of the following four rating agencies:

AGENCY	SENIOR SECURITIES RATING (BONDS)
Standard & Poors	BBB- or higher
Moody's Investors' Services	Baa3 or higher
Fitch IBCA	BBB- or higher
Duff & Phelps Credit Rating Company	BBB- or higher

The CRES Provider will provide the Company with its or its parent's most recent independently-audited financial statements (if applicable), and its or its parent's most recent Form 10-K and Form 10-Q (if applicable).

The Company shall make reasonable alternative credit arrangements with a CRES Provider that is unable to meet the aforementioned criteria and with those CRES Providers whose credit requirements exceed their allowed unsecured credit limit. The CRES Provider may choose from any of the following credit arrangements in a format acceptable to the Company: a guarantee of payment; an irrevocable Letter of Credit; a Prepayment Account established with the Company; a Surety Bond, including the Company as a beneficiary; or other mutually agreeable security or arrangement. The alternate credit arrangements may be provided by a party other than the CRES Provider, including one or more ultimate customers. The fact that a guarantee of payment, irrevocable Letter of Credit, Prepayment Account, or Surety Bond is provided by a party other than the CRES Provider shall not be a factor in the determination of the reasonableness of any alternative credit arrangement, as long as such party and the related credit arrangements meet the Company's standard credit requirements. The amount of the security required must be and remain commensurate with the financial risks placed on the Company by that CRES Provider, including recognition of that CRES Provider's performance.

The Company will make available its credit requirements upon request. A CRES Provider may appeal the Company's determination of credit requirements to the Commission or seek Staff mediation as to any dispute.

11. CUSTOMER ENROLLMENT PROCESS

A. Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List

Upon request, the Company will electronically provide to any CRES Provider certified by the Commission the most recent Customer Information List. The CRES Provider will pay the Company \$150.00 per list provided.

The Company will offer the Customer Information List with updates available quarterly throughout the Market Development Period. Once the list has been updated, a CRES Provider may not use a Customer Information List from a prior quarter to contact customers, but CRES Providers shall not be required to purchase subsequent lists.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-30D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

The Company will provide customers the option to have all the customer's information listed in the section below removed from the Customer Information List. At the same time, the Company will also provide customers with the option to have all information listed below reinstated on the Customer Information List. Customers will be notified of such options quarterly throughout the Market Development Period.

The following information will be provided on the Customer Information List for each customer who has not requested that all information be removed from this list:

Customer name Service address Service city Service state and zip code Mailing address Mailing city Mailing state and zip code Rate schedule under which service is rendered Rider (if applicable) Load profile reference category Meter type (if readily available) Interval meter data indicator (if readily available) Budget bill / PIPP indicator Meter reading cycle Most recent twelve (12) months of historical consumption data (actual energy usage and demand, if available)

The Company will provide the Customer Information List by either a compact disc or on a designated website. The information will be prepared and distributed in a uniform and useable format that allows for data sorting. Customers participating in the percentage of income payment plan (PIPP) program will be coordinated exclusively through the PIPP program administered by the Ohio Department of Development.

B. CRES Provider Requests for Customer Information

CRES Providers certified by the Commission may request historical interval meter data through a Direct Access Service Request (DASR) after receiving the appropriate customer authorization. The interval meter data will be transferred in a standardized electronic transaction. The CRES Provider will be responsible for the incremental costs incurred to prepare and send such data.

C. Direct Access Service Requests

Enrollment of a customer is done through a DASR, which may be submitted only by a CRES Provider.

DASRs will be effective at the end of the customer's next regularly scheduled meter reading date provided that the DASR is received by the Company at least twelve (12) calendar days before the next meter reading date.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-31D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

D. Government Aggregation Customer Information List

Upon request, the Company will provide to any governmental aggregator certified by the Commission a Government Aggregation Customer Information List. The Company will provide the Government Aggregation Customer Information List by compact disc. The information will be prepared and distributed in a uniform and useable format that allows for data sorting. The governmental aggregator will pay the Company \$500.00 per list provided.

The list will include information for all customers residing within the governmental aggregator's boundaries based upon the Company's records, including an identification of customers who are currently in contract with a CRES provider or in a special contract with the Company. The list will also include those customers that elect to have their information removed from the Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List. The Company cannot guarantee that the list will include all of the customers residing within the aggregator's boundaries, nor can the Company guarantee that all the customers shown on the list reside within the aggregator's boundaries. In addition to all information included on the Pre-Enrollment Customer Information List, the Government Aggregation Customer Information List shall also include the customer's Service Delivery Identifier (SDI).

All DASRs will be submitted to the Company no more than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the scheduled meter reading date when the CRES Provider desires the switch to occur, unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties. The Company will process all valid DASRs and send the confirmation notice to the customer within two business days. Simultaneous with the sending of the confirmation notice to the customer, the Company will electronically advise the CRES Provider of acceptance. Notice of rejection of the DASR to the CRES Provider shall be sent within one business day, if possible, but in no event later than four (4) calendar days, and include the reasons for the rejection. The customer has seven (7) calendar days from the confirmation notice to cancel the contract without penalty. If the customer cancels the contract, the Company shall send a drop notice to the CRES Provider and the previous CRES Provider will continue to serve the customer under the terms and conditions in effect prior to submission of the new DASR.

DASRs will be processed on a "first in" priority basis based on the received date, and using contract date as the tie-breaker. Any subsequent DASRs received within the same billing cycle will be rejected and returned to the CRES Provider who submitted the DASR.

To receive service from a CRES Provider, a customer must have an active service account with the Company. After the service account is active, a CRES Provider may submit a DASR as described herein.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-32D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

12. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

All confidential or proprietary information made available by one party to the other in connection with the registration of a CRES Provider with the Company and/or the subsequent provision and receipt of service under these Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service, including but not limited to load data, and information regarding the business processes of a party and the computer and communication systems owned or leased by a party, shall be used only for purposes of registration with the Company, receiving or providing service under these Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and/or providing Competitive Retail Electric Service to customers in the Company's service territory. Other than disclosures to representatives of the Company or the CRES Provider for the purposes of enabling that party to fulfill its obligations under these Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service or for the CRES Provider to provide Competitive Retail Electric Service to customers in the Company's service territory, a party may not disclose confidential or proprietary information without the prior authorization and/or consent of the other party.

The CRES Provider shall keep all customer-specific information supplied by the Company confidential unless the CRES Provider has the customer's written authorization to do otherwise.

LOSSES

Either the CRES Provider or the Transmission Provider may provide both transmission and distribution losses as required to serve customers at various delivery voltages. If a CRES Provider arranges to provide transmission losses under the provisions of the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff, then the CRES Provider must also arrange for the appropriate distribution losses. Customers served at transmission and subtransmission voltages require no additional losses other than the losses specified in the applicable Open Access Transmission Tariff. Customers served at primary distribution voltage require 1.9% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer. Customers served at secondary distribution voltage require 5.1% additional average losses of amounts received by the Company for delivery to the customer.

METER SERVICE PROVIDERS (MSPs)

MSPs desiring to provide service to customers in the Company's Service Territory must submit a written application to the Company in order to provide metering services for ownership, installation, inspection and auditing. Such application shall include the following:

- A. \$500.00 initial registration fee payable to the Company and a \$100 annual registration fee thereafter.
- B. Proof of creditworthiness to the Company, including an appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company and used in the event of damages as a result of the MSP's actions.
- C. The name of the MSP, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-33D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

- Details of the MSP's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.
- E. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the MSP committing it to adhere to the Company's open access distribution schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the MSP and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- F. Proof of an electrical subcontractor's license issued by the Ohio Department of Commerce, including the name of the person or entity to which the license has been issued, license number and expiration date. Certification may require an employee to be a licensed electrician in the service area where work is performed.
- G. Description of the (a) applicant's electric meter installation, maintenance, repair and removal experience, (b) applicant's training and experience regarding electrical safety and (c) educational and training requirements in electrical work and safety that the MSP will require from its employees before they are permitted to install, maintain, repair or remove electric meters or metering devices.

The MSP must also agree to the following standards for metering services:

- A. The Company must approve the type of any and all metering equipment to be installed. Such metering and practices must conform with the Company's metering service guides and standards and must comply with the Meter Testing provision of the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service. A written agreement between the Company and the MSP shall specify those categories or types of meters for which the MSP is certified to install/remove or test/maintain.
- B. The MSP shall allow the Company to disconnect the MSP's meter, or promptly perform a disconnection as notified by the Company where a customer's service is subject to disconnection due to non-payment of distribution charges. The Company shall be permitted to audit the meter accuracy of MSP meters and to disconnect or remove a MSP's meter when necessary to maintain the safe and reliable delivery of electrical service. The MSP is responsible to acquire the right of ingress and egress from the customer to perform its functions. When necessary, the MSP must also seek written approval and secure from the customer any keys necessary to access locked premises.
- C. The MSP is responsible for detecting and immediately notifying the Company of hazardous conditions noted at the customer's electrical service and meter installation.
- D. The MSP is responsible for recording and notifying the Company of conditions detected on the customer's premises which present potential for injury.
- E. The MSP shall be responsible for conforming to Company standards for sealing and resealing meters as well as properly resetting and sealing demand measurement devices.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-34D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Effective: December 9, 2009

P.U.C.O. NO. 19

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

15. METER DATA MANAGEMENT AGENTS (MDMAs)

MDMAs desiring to provide service to customers in the Company's Service Territory must submit a written application to the Company in order to provide any meter reading or data management services. Such application shall include the following:

- A \$100.00 annual registration fee payable to the Company.
- B. Proof of creditworthiness to the Company, including an appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company and used in the event of damages as a result of the MDMA's actions.
- C. The name of the MDMA, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).
- D. Details of the MDMA's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.
- E. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the MDMA committing it to adhere to the Company's Open Access Distribution Schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the MDMA and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- F. Description of the (a) applicant's experience in meter reading, data validation, editing and estimation, and other data management activities and (b) educational and training requirements that the MDMA will require from its employees before they are permitted to perform such meter reading, data validation, editing and estimating and other data management activities.

The MDMA must also agree to the following standards for meter data management services:

- A. All billing meters shall be read each month, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the MDMA and the Company.
- B. Meter data shall be read, validated, edited and transferred pursuant to Commission and Company approved standards. The Company and the MDMA must agree to common data formats for the exchange of validated data.
- C. The Company shall have reasonable access to the MDMA data server.
- D. The MDMA shall provide to the appropriate entities reasonable and timely access to meter data as required for billing, settlement, scheduling, forecasting and other functions.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-35D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued by

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- E. The MDMA shall retain the most recent twelve (12) months of data for any customer who elects the MDMA to perform meter reading and data management services. Such data must be retained for a minimum period of 36 months and must be released upon request to either the customer or an entity authorized by the customer.
- F. Within five (5) business days after the installation of a meter, the MDMA must confirm with the Company that the meter and meter reading system are working properly and that the billing data is valid.
- G. No more than 10% of the individual meters read by the MDMA shall contain estimated data, with no single account being estimated more than two consecutive months. Estimated data must be based on historical data and load profile data as provided by the Company.
- H. The MDMA shall comply with the Company's time requirements for the posting of validated meter reading data on the MDMA server.
- The MDMA is responsible for acquiring the right of ingress and egress from the customer
 to perform its functions. When necessary, the MDMA must also seek written approval
 and secure from the customer any keys necessary to access locked premises.
- J. The MDMA is responsible for identifying suspected cases of the unauthorized use of energy and shall report such concerns to the customer's CRES Provider, Transmission Provider and the Company. The CRES Provider shall resolve such concerns and pursue the appropriate legal response and all necessary parties shall support this action. The customer's supplier of meter services (MSP or the Company) shall make the necessary meter corrections and/or repairs, and then notify the MDMA who shall correct the previous meter usage data and provide to the appropriate entities such data as required for billing, settlement, scheduling, forecasting and other functions. Any billing corrections shall be consistent with the provisions of the Company's Terms and Conditions of Service for Open Access Distribution Service.
- K. The MDMA is responsible for detecting and immediately notifying the Company of hazardous conditions noted at the customer's electrical service and meter installation.
- L. The MDMA is responsible for recording and notifying the Company of conditions detected on the customer's premises which present potential for injury.
- M. The MDMA shall be responsible for conforming to Company standards for sealing and resealing meters as well as properly resetting and sealing demand measurement devices.

16. CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY A BILLING AGENT (BA)

BAs desiring to provide service to customers in the Company's Service Territory must submit a written application to the Company in order to provide consolidated billing-related services to customers. Such application shall include the following:

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-36D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- A. \$100.00 annual registration fee payable to the Company.
- B. Proof of creditworthiness to the Company, including an appropriate financial instrument to be held by the Company and used in the event of damages as a result of the BA's actions.
- C. The name of the BA, business and mailing addresses, and the names, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses of appropriate contact persons, including the 24-hour emergency contact telephone number and emergency contact person(s).
- D. Details of the BA's dispute resolution process for customer complaints.
- E. A signed statement by the officer(s) of the BA committing it to adhere to the open access distribution schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, Supplier Terms and Conditions of Service and any additional requirements stated in any agreement between the BA and the Company regarding services provided by either party.
- F. Description of the (a) applicant's training and experience in billing collections, payment services and billing inquiries and (b) educational and training requirements for BA employees regarding such services.
- G. The Company and the BA must agree to common data formats for the exchange of billing data.

A written agreement between the Company and the BA shall specify the bill format regarding transmission- and distribution-related services. Regardless of such format, each customer's bill rendered by the BA shall show charges for generation, transmission, distribution and other services covered under the particular bill and also indicate the provider of each service.

The BA must agree to be subject to the same provisions as the Company, including requirements as specified in the Company's Open Access Distribution Schedules, Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution, Ohio Revised Code, and all other legislative and regulatory mandates regarding billing. The BA is responsible for electronically transmitting funds received from the customer for charges from Company for distribution service, together with the associated customer account data, on the same day as receiving said funds. The BA assumes responsibility for outstanding distribution service charges from the Company and is responsible for providing payment in full of all charges for distribution service from the Company by the due date in accordance with terms of the applicable open access distribution schedule. Failure of the BA to transmit such funds by the due date will result in late charges applied to the affected customer's account according to the provisions of the customer's open access distribution schedule. If the BA fails to provide payment to the Company by the due date of the next bill, the Company will thereafter directly bill the customer for distribution service from the Company. In addition, the financial instrument will be forfeited to the extent necessary to cover bills due and payable to the Company.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-37D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Company will provide a credit to BAs that are CRES Providers and that issue consolidated bills to their customers that include the Company's distribution charges. Such credit shall be equal to \$1.00 for each consolidated bill issued by the BA during the first one year period that the Company can accommodate such consolidated billing.

17. CONSOLIDATED BILLING BY THE COMPANY

Upon request, the Company will offer Company-issued consolidated bills to customers receiving service from a CRES Provider upon execution of an appropriate agreement between the CRES Provider and the Company. Company-issued consolidated billing will include budget billing as an option. The CRES Provider will be responsible for the Company's incremental cost of issuing consolidated bills. The CRES Provider must electronically provide all information in a bill-ready format.

At the Company's discretion, any customer receiving Company consolidated billing with a CRES Provider billing arrearage of more than 60 days may be switched back to the Company's Standard Offer Service and will not be permitted to select a new CRES Provider until the arrearage is paid.

If the customer's CRES Provider defaults, the Company reserves the right to retain payments collected from the customer and to apply such payments to the Company's charges.

18. METERING AND LOAD PROFILING

All customers with maximum monthly billing demands of 200 KW or greater for the most recent twelve (12) months shall be interval metered. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may request an interval meter for customers with maximum monthly billing demands less than 200 kW.

The cost of any interval metering facilities installed by the Company to comply with this requirement or as a result of such request shall be paid by the customer. The customer shall make a one-time payment for the metering facilities at the time of installation of the required facilities, or, at the customer's option, up to 24 consecutive equal monthly payments reflecting an annual interest charge as determined by the Company, but not to exceed the cost of the Company's most recent issue of long-term debt. If the customer elects the installment payment option, the Company shall require an initial payment equal to 25% of the total cost of the metering facilities.

In addition, the customer shall pay a net charge to cover the incremental cost of operation and maintenance and meter data management associated with such interval metering as follows. Charges are for service performed on a Company installed standard interval meter.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-38D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Service Performed During Normal Business Hours	Charge (\$)
Connect phone line to meter at a time other than the initial interval	
meter installation	54.00
Perform manual meter reading	39.00
Check phone line and perform manual meter reading due to communication	44.00
loss	
Repair/replace surge protector	65.00
Repair/replace interval board	146.00
Repair/replace modem board	236.00
Repair/replace interval and modern boards	304.00

The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may select a meter from the Company's approved equipment list. The customer or the customer's CRES Provider may communicate with the meter for the purpose of obtaining usage data, subject to the Company's communication protocol. The customer is responsible for providing the telephone line for purposes of reading the meter.

A customer that is required to have interval metering must approve a work order for interval meter installation before a CRES Provider may serve such customer. During the period between when the customer has requested an interval meter and the time that the Company is able to install such a meter, a Company load profile will be used for settlement purposes and consumption meter readings will be used for billing.

All load profiling shall be performed by the Company. Sample data and customer specific interval metering, when available, will be used in the development of the total load profile for which a CRES Provider is responsible for providing generation and possibly arranging transmission services. Such data shall be provided to the BA or other entities as required for monthly billing.

DEPOSITS

Security for the payment of bills for service from a CRES Provider will be governed, as specified in Chapter 4901:1-21-07 of the Ohio Administrative Code, which is herein incorporated by reference as it is from time to time amended.

20. PAYMENTS

Partial payment from a customer shall be applied to the various portions of the customer's total bill in the following order: (a) past due distribution, Standard Offer Service generation and transmission charges, (b) past due CRES Provider charges, (c) current CRES Provider charges, (d) current distribution, Standard Offer Service generation and transmission charges, and (e) other past due and current non-regulated charges.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-39D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

COMPANY'S LIABILITY

In addition to the Company's liability as set forth in the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, the following shall apply. The Company shall use reasonable diligence in delivering regular and uninterrupted supply of energy to the customer, but does not guarantee continuous, regular and uninterrupted service. The Company may, without liability, interrupt or limit the supply of service for the purpose of making repairs, changes, or improvements in any part of its system for the general good of the service or the safety of the public or for the purpose of preventing or limiting any actual or threatened instability or disturbance of the system. The Company is also not liable for any damages due to accident, strike, storm, riot, fire, flood, legal process, state or municipal interference, or any other cause beyond the Company's control. The Company shall not be liable for damages in case such service should be interrupted or fail by reason of failure of the customer's CRES Provider to provide appropriate energy to the Company for delivery to the customer. The Company shall not be liable for any damages, financial or otherwise, to any of the customer's CSPs resulting from an interruption of service.

Meters shall be provided and maintained by the Company unless the customer selects a MSP to provide metering services. Unless otherwise specified, such meters shall be and remain the property of the Company.

22. COMPETITIVE SERVICE PROVIDER'S LIABILITY

In the event of loss or injury to the Company's property through misuse by, or negligence of, the CRES Provider, MSP, MDMA or BA, or the CSP's agents and employees, the CSP shall be obligated and shall pay to the Company the full cost of repairing or replacing such property.

Unless authorized by the Company to do so, a CSP and its agents and employees shall not tamper with, interfere with or break the seals of meters or other equipment of the Company installed on the customer's premises, and, under any circumstances, the CSP assumes all liability for the consequences thereof. The CSP agrees that no one, except agents and employees of the Company, shall be allowed to make any internal or external adjustments to any meter or other piece of apparatus which belongs to the Company.

23. METER ACCURACY AND TESTS

A MSP's meter performance levels, testing methods and test schedules must comply with all standards specified by the Company. Such details shall be specified in the agreement between the Company and the MSP.

When metering is provided by an MSP, the Company may, at its discretion, direct meter-related inquiries from the customer to the MSP for response, or the Company may send notification to the MSP to perform a test of the accuracy of its meter. At the MSP's request, or should the MSP fail to perform a customer-requested test in a timely manner, the Company, at its discretion, may agree to test the accuracy of a meter supplied by the MSP. Regardless of the test results, the MSP shall pay to the Company a flat amount equal to the Company's current average cost of performing such meter tests. Such test will be conducted using a properly calibrated meter standard.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-40D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

SUPPLIER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Company, at its discretion, may perform a test of the accuracy of a meter supplied by the MSP at any time. If the meter fails to perform at the accuracy standards set forth in the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service, the MSP will be responsible to remedy the accuracy of the meter, and to pay to the Company a flat amount equal to the Company's current average cost of performing such meter tests.

24. BILLING CORRECTIONS

Any correction of bills due to a meter registration error must be coordinated with the other entities utilizing the billing data which is in error. Any entity which detects an error in billing data shall promptly notify the MDMA or the Company if it is performing the function of the MDMA. The MDMA shall then correct any necessary data and provide to the appropriate entities such data as required for billing, settlement, scheduling, forecasting and other functions. Any billing corrections shall be consistent with the provisions of the Company's Terms and Conditions of Open Access Distribution Service.

25. TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF A CRES PROVIDER

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Tariff or any agreement between the Company and the CRES Provider, in the event of a default by the CRES Provider, the Company shall serve written notice of such default in reasonable detail and with a proposed remedy to the CRES Provider and the Commission. On or after the date the default notice has been served, the Company may file with the Commission a written request for authorization to terminate or suspend the service agreement between the Company and the CRES Provider. Except for default due to non-delivery, if the Commission does not act within ten (10) business days upon receipt of the request, the Company's request to terminate or suspend shall be deemed authorized on the eleventh (11th) business day. If the default is due to non-delivery, and if the Commission does not act within five (5) business days upon receipt of the request, the Company's request to terminate or suspend shall be deemed authorized on the sixth (6th) business day. Termination or suspension shall require authorization from the Commission.

The Company shall send notices pursuant to this section by e-mail, fax, overnight mail, or hand delivery to the Commission and Staff at the Commission's offices. The Company shall notify all Commissioners, the Chief of Staff, the Director of the Consumer Services Department, the Director of the Legal Department, and the Chief of the Attorney General's Public Utilities Section. The Company shall send the notice to the address and fax number provided by the CRES Provider in its service agreement with the Company.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

CODE OF CONDUCT

- 1. The Company shall not release any proprietary customer information (e.g., individual customer load profiles or billing histories) to an affiliate, or otherwise, without the prior authorization of the customer, except as required by a regulatory agency or court of law.
- 2. The Company shall make customer lists, which include name, address and telephone number, available on a nondiscriminatory basis to all nonaffiliated and affiliated certified retail electric competitors transacting business in its service territory, unless otherwise directed by the customer. This provision does not apply to customer-specific information, obtained with proper authorization, necessary to fulfill the terms of a contract, or information relating to the provision of general and administrative support services.
- 3. Employees of the Company's affiliates shall not have access to any information about the Company's transmission or distribution systems (e.g., system operations, capability, price, curtailments, and ancillary services), that is not contemporaneously and in the same form and manner available to a nonaffiliated competitor of retail electric service.
- 4. The Company shall treat as confidential all information obtained from a competitive supplier of retail electric service, both affiliated and nonaffiliated, and shall not release such information unless a competitive supplier provides authorization to do so.
- 5. The Company shall not tie (nor allow an affiliate to tie) or otherwise condition the provision of the Company's regulated services, discounts, rebates, fee waivers, or any other waivers of the Company's ordinary terms and conditions of service, including but not limited to tariff provisions, to the taking of any goods and/or services from the Company's affiliates.
- 6. The Company shall not engage in joint advertising or marketing of any kind with its affiliates or directly promote or market any product or service offered by any affiliate. The Company shall also not give the appearance that the Company speaks on behalf of its affiliates or that the customer will receive preferential treatment as a consequence of conducting business with the affiliates.
- 7. The Company, upon request from a customer, shall provide a complete list of all suppliers operating on the system, but shall not endorse any suppliers nor indicate that any supplier will receive preference because of an affiliate relationship.
- 8. The Company shall not trade upon, promote or advertise its affiliate relationship nor allow the Company name or logo to be used by the affiliate in any material circulated by the affiliate, unless it discloses in plain legible or audible language, on the first page or at the first point where the utility name or logo is mentioned, that:
 - (a) The affiliate is not the same company as the Company;
 - (b) The affiliate is not regulated by the Commission; and
 - (c) The customer does not have to buy the affiliate's products in order to continue to receive quality, regulated service from the Company.

The application of the name/logo disclaimer is limited to the use of the name or logo in Ohio.

(Continued on Sheet No. 3-43D)

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

Issued: December 9, 2009

Effective: December 9, 2009

P.U.C.O. NO. 19

CODE OF CONDUCT

- 9. The Company shall provide comparable access to products and services related to tariffed products and services and specifically comply with the following:
 - (a) The Company shall be prohibited from unduly discriminating in the offering of its products and/or services:
 - (b) The Company shall apply all tariff provisions in the same manner to the same or similarly situated entities, regardless of any affiliation or nonaffiliation;
 - (c) The Company shall not, through a tariff provision, a contract, or otherwise, give its affiliates preference over nonaffiliated competitors of retail electric service or their customers in matters relating to any product and/or service;
 - (d) The Company shall strictly follow all tariff provisions;
 - (e) Except to the extent allowed by state law, the Company shall not be permitted to provide discounts, rebates, or fee waivers for any state regulated monopoly service; and
 - (f) Violations of the provisions of this rule shall be enforced and subject to the disciplinary actions described in divisions (C) and (D) of Section 4928.18, Ohio Revised Code.
- 10. Notwithstanding any provision of this Code of Conduct, in a declared emergency situation, the Company may take actions necessary to ensure public safety and system reliability. The Company shall maintain a log of all such actions that do not comply with this Code of Conduct, which log shall be review by the Commission.
- The Company shall establish a complaint procedure for the issues concerning compliance with this 11. rule. All complaints, whether written or verbal, shall be referred to the general counsel of the Company or their designee. The legal counsel shall orally acknowledge the complaint within five business days of its receipt. The legal counsel shall prepare a written statement of the complaint that shall contain the name of the complainant and a detailed factual report of the complaint, including all relevant dates, companies involved, employees involved, and the specific claim. The legal counsel shall communicate the results of the preliminary investigation to the complainant in writing within thirty (30) days after the complaint was received, including a description of any course of action that was taken. The legal counsel shall keep a file in the Cost Allocation Manual, of all such complaint statements for a period of not less than three (3) years. This complaint procedure shall not in any way limit the rights if a party to file a complaint with the Commission.

Filed pursuant to Order dated December 2, 2009 in Case No. 09-1003-EL-ATA

AEP Ohio